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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
~ A CLAconnect.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming
Cheyenne, Wyoming

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Laramie County, Wyoming, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Cheyenne Regional Medical Center (the Hospital), which is shown
as a discretely presented component unit and includes the Cheyenne Regional Medical Center
Foundation, which is combined with the Hospital, the Laramie County Library Foundation, Inc., which is
combined with the Laramie County Library System, a discretely presented component unit, or the
Cheyenne Regional Medical Center Pension Plan, which is shown as a fiduciary fund. The Hospital
represents 94 percent, 93 percent, and 96 percent, respectively, of the assets and deferred outflows of
resources, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. The
Laramie County Library Foundation, Inc. represents less than 1 percent, less than 1 percent, and less
than 1 percent, respectively, of the assets and deferred outflows of resources, net position, and
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. The Cheyenne Regional Medical
Center Pension Plan represents 61 percent and 2 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the aggregate remaining fund information. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
Cheyenne Regional Medical Center, the Cheyenne Regional Medical Center Foundation, the
Cheyenne Regional Medical Center Pension Plan and the Laramie County Library Foundation, are
based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of
the Laramie County Library Foundation, Inc. were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.
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Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Laramie County, Wyoming as of June 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, and GASB required pension
schedules as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Laramie County, Wyoming’s basic financial statements. The combining
nonmajor fund financial statements, the discretely presented component unit statements, and the
combining fiduciary fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.



Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements, discretely presented component unit statements,
combining fiduciary fund financial statements, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21,
2022, on our consideration of Laramie County, Wyoming's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Laramie County, Wyoming’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Laramie County, Wyoming’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

WM@% s

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Broomfield, Colorado
March 21, 2022
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

As management of Laramie County, Wyoming (refet@és “Laramie County” or the “County”), we offer
readers of the County’s financial statements thisative overview and analysis of the financiahatits of the
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflow of resources cdrher County exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflow of resources at the close of the most redmsctal year by $212,533,87@4t position. Of this
amount, $44,050,154urestricted net positigrmay be used to meet the County’s ongoing obbgati
to citizens and creditors.

e As of the close of the year, the County’s governialefunds reported combined ending fund balances
of $91,334,039, an increase of $27,736,935 from gher year. Of this amount, $30,755,380 is
available for spendinat the County’s discretion (unassigrfadd balancg

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigiund balance for the general fund was $30,795,38
or 85% of total general fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to sesvanaintroduction to the County’s basic financiatements.
The County’s basic financial statements compriseetltomponents: 1) government-wide financial states)
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to thantial statements. This report also contains iredu
supplementary information as well as supplemeritdoymation to the basic financial statements thelues.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statemerdase designed to provide readers with a broad osenaf the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a privegetor business.

The statement of net positigoresents information on all of the County’s asseffgfred outflow of resources
and liabilities/deferred inflow of resources, witie difference between them reportednas position.Over
time, increases or decreases in net position mag & a useful indicator of whether the finanpiasition of
the County is improving or deteriorating.

Thestatement of activitigsresents information showing how the County’s resifon changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position amgorted as soon as the underlying event givisg t the
change occurgegardless of the timing of related cash flowkus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result asle flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncokettaxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statementstidguish functions of the County that are printlipa
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revengege(nmental activitigsfrom other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion their costs through user fees and chardesifess-type
activitieg. The governmental activities of the County indwgeneral government, public safety, public works,
health, welfare and recreation, and conservatiohdavelopment. The only business-type activityhef County

is the Memorial Hospital of Laramie Countyb@ Cheyenne Regional Medical Cehtghe “Hospital”) and is
reported as a major discretely presented compamahtn this report. The Hospital issues its ownaficial
statements if more detailed financial informatidroat its operations is needed.

The government-wide financial statements can badaan pages 10 and 11 of this report. The statesrfent
the component units can be found on pages 80 f 88saeport.

4



Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that isduso maintain control over resources that haven bee
segregated for specific activities or objectiveBe Tounty, like other state and local governmeames fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliande fimance-related legal requirements. All of theds of
the County can be divided into three categoriesegunental funds, proprietary funds, and fiducianyds.

Governmental funds.

Governmental fundare used to account for essentially the same fumtieported agovernmental activities

the government-wide financial statements. Howewanlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focusiear-term inflows and outflows of spendable resesyas well

as onbalances of spendable resoureesilable at the end of the fiscal year. Suchrmétion may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing neguéents.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrdiwear that of the government-wide financial statetsieit is
useful to compare the information presented governmental fundsvith similar information presented for
governmental activitiesn the government—wide financial statements. Byngloso, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the governmem¢ar-term financing decisions. Both the goverrtaden
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statef revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitatestobomparison betweegovernmental fundand governmental
activities.

The County maintains five major governmental furilsese are the general fund, optional 1% tax fpot)ic
works fund, ARPA fund, and SPOT 2017 constructiomdf Information for major funds is presented saefady
and in aggregate for the nonmajor funds in the gowental fund balance sheet and in the governmémall
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changdsinith balances. Detailed information for nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the formcombining statementsund on pages 76 — 79.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budgeitddunds. Budgetary comparison schedules have bee
provided for the general fund and major speciaénere funds to demonstrate compliance with the dudge

The basic governmental fund financial statementsbeafound on pages 12 — 17 of this report.
Proprietary funds.

There are two different types of proprietary funBsiterprise fundsare used to report the same functions
presented abusiness-type activitiaa the government-wide financial statemeitgernal service fundare an
accounting tool used to accumulate and allocatés aogernally. The County uses an internal serficel to
account for its self-insurance. Because theses\predominantly benefit governmental rather thaginess-
type functions, they have been included witlgjovernmental activitiesn the government-wide financial
statements. The County does not maintain an ergerfumd.

The basic proprietary fund financial statementshoafound on pages 18 — 20 of this report.
Fiduciary funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resourcdd For the benefit of parties outside the govemnine
Fiduciary funds arenot reflected in the government-wide financial statetngecause the resources of those
funds arenot available to support the County’s own programse &bcounting used for fiduciary funds is much
like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements caridund on pages 21 — 24 of this report.
Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that isesgial to a full understanding of the data prodide the
government-wide and fund financial statements. fidtes to the financial statements can be foundagep 25
— 62 of this report.



Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements accbmpanying notes, this report also presents ocemgjuired
supplementary informationoncerning the County’s compliance with requiredidetary reporting for certain
major funds as well as information regarding thei@g's and its component units’ proportionate stafréne
net pension liability and contributions. This reggi supplementary information can be found on p&3es75
of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier inneation with nonmajor governmental funds and distye
presented component units are presented immedialidwing the required supplementary informatidmese
combining statements can be found on pages 760f 8%s report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over tawa useful indicator of a government'’s financiadipon. In
the case of Laramie County, assets and deferrdldwatof resources exceed liabilities and defeirdldbws of
resources by $212,533,876 as of June 30, 2021.

The largest portion of the County's net positior%® is invested in capital assets (e.g., land,dmngs,
equipment, construction in process, and infrastimegt The County uses capital assets to providgcseto its
citizens: consequently, these assets are not biatla fund current operations; in addition, reséd assets are
not available to fund current operations. The umicted net position of $44,050,154 may be usethéet the
County’s ongoing obligations to its citizens andditors.

2021 2020
Current and other assets $ 109,259,748 $ 70,249,709
Capital assets 144,074,242 156,187,854
Total assets 253,333,990 226,437,563
Deferred outflows of resources 5,884,753 7,170,772
Current liabilities 15,076,658 5,719,316
Noncurrent liabilities 21,810,094 31,798,568
Total liabilities 36,886,752 37,517,884
Deferred inflows of resources 9,798,115 9,614,491
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 143,332,717 147,193,115
Restricted 25,151,005 21,861,180
Unrestricted 44,050,154 17,421,665
Total net positio $ 212,533,876 $ 186,475,960

Governmental Activities

The $26,057,916 increase in the County’s net mosis related to governmental activities. Totalemaves for
governmental activities increased from the previgear by $9,629,636. The increase in revenues vestlyn
from charges for service, operating grants andritirtions, property tax, sales and other taxes,sauled tax
revenue.



The following table provides a summary of the Cgismbperations for the year ended June 30, 202th wi

comparative totals for the year ended June 30,.2020

2021 2020
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 15,010,80 $ 13,233,849
Operating grants and contributions 9,474,83:i 6,080,005
Capital grants and contributions 449,73¢ 564,585
Governmental revenues:
Property taxes 22,249,29 21,195,047
Sales and other taxes 24,438,72 23,399,726
Shared tax revenue 20,604,81 19,146,571
Licenses and permits 2,044,98: 1,511,027
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment 267,40: (80,082)
Unrestricted investment earnings 79,09¢ 1,139,184
Miscellaneous revenue 2,004,422 804,584
Total Revenues 96,624,113 86,994,496
Expenses:
General government 25,117,422 25,423,021
Public safety 26,260,08 28,989,067
Public works 9,959,779 9,107,614
Health, welfare, and recreation 7,864,97. 6,521,389
Conservation and development 1,333,74 941,214
Interest on long-term debt 30,19( 171,399
Total expenses 70,566,21 71,153,704
Increase in net position 26,057,91 15,840,792
Net position-July 1 186,475,96 170,635,168
Net position-June : $ 212,533,87 186,475,96

To aid in the understanding of the statement dfitiels presented on page 11 of this report, sodditianal
explanation is given. Of particular interest is toemat, which is significantly different than thgpical
statement of revenues, expenses, and changesdrb&lance (similar to the above table). You wiltio® that
expenses are listed in the first column with rewsnsupporting that particular program reportechto right.
The result is a net (expense)/revenue presentdtt@reason for this format is to highlight theatisle financial
burden of each of the functions on county taxpayérnslentifies how much each function draws froengral
revenues or from self-financing fees and grantss Important to note that all taxes are classifesdgeneral

revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

County Funds

The focus of Laramie County’s governmental fundsoigrovide information on the inflows, outflowshch
balances of spendable resources. This informasiaseéful in assessing the County’s financing resoénts. In
particular, unassigned fund balance is a usefulsoreaof a government's net resources available for
appropriation at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the most recent fiscal year, Lara@oeinty’s combined governmental funds ending furldrixzes
totaled $91,334,039. Approximately 71% of this kat@ount, $65,282,713 constitutes unassigned, ressignd
committed fund balance and 28% is restricted inatmeunt of $25,151,005 and may only be spent fecifip
purposes. The remainder of the fund balance isvaitable for current spending.
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In the general fund, the County shows an increadard balance of $13,103,779. This is the resuhigher
than expected revenues and lower than expectedisgen

General Fund Budget Highlights

Over the course of the year, the County Commisstonevised the general fund budget and severaliapec
revenue fund budgets. These budget amendmentstwarerease budgets due to the receipt of unaatieth
grant revenues and to appropriate money from castrves for unexpected expenditures. Budgetargnséaits
begin on page 63 for the general fund and continteigh page 66 of this report.

Each year the County Commissioners, through thaitgbt resolution, assign a portion of unrestridiaud
balance and/or new revenue as “Cash Reserves.eTdsssgned reserves may, through budget amendbeent,
used for any legal County purpose. Assigned castrves, along with all other budgets, lapse aettteof each
fiscal year and become part of unrestricted funkdrize available for appropriation in the next flsgaar
budget. The County’s goal is to maintain sufficiassigned cash reserves to maintain basic Courtatpns
for 90 days.

Capital Assets and Long-term Debt

At June 30, 2021, the County had $258,010,843 tede#n capital assets including sheriff's equipment
buildings, park facilities, public-works equipmerind infrastructure. This represents a decreashofit $6
Million or 2.3% from last year.

Government Activities 2021 2020

Land $ 7,412,37. $ 7,812,374

Buildings and improvements 111,272,55 78,984,753

Machinery and equipment 39,987,77 38,854,258

Infrastructure 98,563,990 96,700,727

Intangible Assets 110,32: 110,321

Construction in process 663,91« 41,539,961

Less accumulated depreciation (113,936,601 (107,814,540)

Totals $ 144,074,244 $ 156,187,85

This year's major additions to capital assets viene SPOT 2017 construction projects.

Additional information on the County’s and its commgnt unit’'s capital assets can be found in Nave Pages
36 — 41 of this report.

At year-end, the County had $3,245,045 in long-tdeht, which includes $2,503,520 of accrued congeds
absences, $710,00ff capital lease obligation for the Juvenile SersicCenter, and $31,525 for equipment
capital leases. The County satisfied economic devetnt notes payable totaling $8,604,849 durindfitoal
year. Additional information on the County’s ansl @omponent unit's long-term debt can be found ateN8 on
pages 42 — 45 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’'s Budget

The County continued to be conservative in its meeeprojections and spending appropriations foteffi¥ear
2022, considering the cyclical nature of the foRsgls market and the COVID-19 pandemic. See thelasure
of uncertainty related to the COVID-19 pandemidiste 18 on page 62.

On May 2, 2017, the voters of Laramie County autleat the collection of an additional 1% Specifiafase
Optional Sales and Use Tax, for the expansion ®fdh, remodeling the existing courthouse, corgtom of a
multiuse facility at the fairgrounds, and the pash of equipment. Activity related to this tax iegented in the
SPOT 2017 fund on pages 12 — 16.



Contacting the County’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide ouizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors witiereral
overview of the County’s finances and to show tlwui@@y’s accountability for the money it receivelsydu
have any questions about this report or need additifinancial information, contact the Laramie @tu
Clerk’s Office at 309 West 20Street, Cheyenne Wyoming 82001. Additional Countgget and prior year's
audit reporting are available at http://www.laracaientyclerk.com/budget.asp.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2021

Primary
Government
Governmental Component
ASSETS Activities Units
Cash and cash equivalents 1,713,067 $ 94,586,060
Equity in pooled cash 59,571,357 -
Investments 39,902,904 366,926,112
Net investment in capital |ease - 710,000
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectabl es) 1,233,371 51,836,120
Accrued interest receivable - 1,255
Due from other governments 5,938,728 346,641
Inventory - 8,789,846
Prepaid expenses 900,321 4,959,166
Restricted assets:
Restricted by donor - 7,962,854
Debt agreement - 18,391,137
Other - 12,948,362
Capital assets, not being depreciated 8,076,288 18,161,629
Capital assets being depreciated, net 135,997,954 197,684,034
Total assets 253,333,990 783,303,216
DEFFERED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related outflows 5,884,753 1,112,225
Total deferred outflow of resour ces 5,884,753 1,112,225
Total assets and deferred outflow of resour ces 259,218,743 $ 784,415,441
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments - $ 226,048
Due to Cheyenne Regional Medical Center - 1,048,246
Accrued liabilities 3,989,485 31,435,879
Unearned revenue 9,662,145 43,749,035
Third-party payor settlements, estimated - 1,721,639
Funds held for others 904,338 -
Due to other taxing units 3,881 -
Landfill closure and post closure liability - 820,700
Net pension liability 19,081,858 5,947,849
Deferred Revenue - 84,042
L ong-term debt due within one year 516,809 7,332,526
L ong-term debt due in more than one year 2,728,236 119,840,718
Total liabilities 36,886,752 212,206,682
DEFFERED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related inflows 9,798,115 7,233,051
Deferred Refunding Cost - 2,062,671
Total deferred inflow of resour ces 9,798,115 9,295,722
Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resour ces 46,684,867 $ 221,502,404
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 143,332,717 $ 87,749,933
Restricted for:
Abandoned vehicles 148,734 -
Bond indenture agreement, expendabl e - 18,391,137
Community facilities 270,034 -
Donor specified purposes, expendable - 8,901,142
Endowments, nonexpendabl e - 11,037,355
Grant agreements 30,345 -
Permanently restricted - 553,953
Road maintenance 11,048,118 -
SPOT tax operations 6,878,355 -
State Statutes 6,605,108 -
Statutory 911 charges 142,828 -
Temporarily restricted - 652,063
GIS COOP 27,483
Unrestricted 44,050,154 435,627,454
Total net position 212,533,876 $ 562,913,037

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 202

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary
Government
Operating  Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Component
Function/Programs Expenses services Contributions  Contributions  Activities Units
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government $ 25,117,42% 11,892,392% 3,396,073 $ 370,174 $ (9,458,788)3% -
Public safety 26,260,089 2,692,195 1,014,803 - (22,553,091) -
Public works 9,959,797 55,619 100,000 - (9,804,178) -
Health, welfare, and recreation 7,864,973 370,518 4,953,962 79,561 (2,460,932) -
Conservation and development 1,333,740 85 10,000 - (1,323,655) -
Interest on long-term debt 30,190 - - - (30,190) -
Total governmental activities 70,566,216 15,010,809 9,474,838 449,735 (45,630,834) -
Total primary government $ 70,566,21 $ 15,010,80 $ 9,474,831 $ 449,73! $ (45,630,834 $ -
Component uni 3 385,802,17 $ 393,985,114 $ 6,660,64° $ 6,897 $ - $ 14,850,51
General revenues
Property taxes $ 22,249,296 $ 7,630,920
Sales and other taxes 24,438,727 1,687,899
Shared tax revenue 20,604,815 -
Licenses and permits 2,044,988 -
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 267,401 61,948
Provider relief funds - 14,783,109
Unrestricted investment earnings 79,096 42,206,358
Miscellaneous revenue 2,004,427 3,173,200
Total general revenue 71,688,750 69,543,434
Change in net positiol 26,057,916 84,393,944
186,475,960 478,519,093

Net position- beginning of year
Net position- end of ye

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2021

Optional 1% Tax

ASSETS General Fund Fund
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,367,483 $ -
Equity in pooled cash 19,372,010 5,147,380
Investments 32,166,320 -
Accountsreceivable 104,307 -
Property taxes receivable, net 866,933 -
Due from other funds 149,918 -
Due from other governments 2,927,251 1,686,576
Prepaid assets 274,158 -
Total assets $ 57,228,380 $ 6,833,956

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other taxing units
Accrued payroll liabilities
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Funds held for others
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable revenue
Total deferred inflow of resour ces

Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resour ces

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflow of
resour ces and fund balances

See Notes to Financial Statements.

$ 1,623,771
3,881

1,196,236
226,724

904,338

3,954,950

1,446,336

1,446,336

5,401,286

274,158
270,034

20,527,522
30,755,380

6,754,876

51,827,094

6,754,876

$ 57,228,380

$ 6,833,956
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Public Works SPOT 2017 Other Governmental
Fund ARPA Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 996 $ - $ 127,689% 1,496,168
10,890,717 9,662,145 3,580,271 8,882,840 57,535,363
- - - 7,736,584 39,902,904
202 - - 245,256 349,765
- - - 16,673 883,606
- - - 226,724 376,642
442,833 - 506,577 375,491 5,938,728
608,274 - - 17,889 900,321
$ 11,943,02 $ 9,662,14" $4,086,84 $ 17,629,14 % 107,383,49
$ 96,956 $ - 8 860 $ 251,656 $ 2,052,323
- - - - 3,881
189,674 - - 201,252 1,587,162
- - - 149,918 376,642
- 9,662,145 - - 9,662,145
- - - - 904,338
286,630 9,662,145 860 602,826 14,586,491
- - - 16,631 1,462,967
- 16,631 1,462,967
286,630 9,662,145 860 619,457 16,049,458
608,274 - - 17,889 900,321
11,048,118 - 4,085,988 9,746,865 25,151,005
- - - 1,424,535 8,179,411
- - - 5,820,400 26,347,922
- - - - 30,755,380
11,656,392 - 4,085,988 17,009,689 91,334,039
$ 11,943,02 $ 9,662,14' $4,086,84 $ 17,629,14 $ 107,383,49
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 202

Total fund balances-governmental funds $ 91,334,039

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesatdinancial
resources and, therefore, are not reported inuihest 144,074,242

Some of the County's revenues will be collectedraféar end
but are not available soon enough to pay for teeati period's
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in thd<fu 1,462,967

Net pension liability is not due and payable in therent period,
and so it, and its related components of defemfidvir's or outflows
of resources are not reported in the funds. (22,995,220)

Long-term position, including capital leases pagahbbtes payable,
and compensated absences are not due and pay#idecirrent

period and, therefore, are not reported in the und (3,245,045)
Internal service funds are accounted for as prapsidunds,
therefore, they are not included in the governmidotals. 1,902,893
Net position of governmental activitie $ 212,533,87

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 202

Optional 1%

General Fund Tax Fund
Revenues
Taxes $ 25,479,341 $ 9,548,090
Licenses and permits 92,395 -
Intergovernmental revenues 17,374,091 -
Charges for services 6,195,317 -
Investment earnings 74,422 -
Miscellaneous revenues 1,755,396 -
Total revenues 50,970,962 9,548,090
Expenditures
Current:
General government 14,228,619 199,682
Public safety 20,844,507 289,409
Public works - -
Health, welfare and recreation 109,699 1,080,095
Conservation and development 225,257 143,102
Debt service:
Interest 28,306 -
Principal 165,169 -
Capital outlay 396,627 212,215
Total expenditures 35,998,184 1,924,503
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditure: 14,972,778 7,623,587
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 21,065 -
Proceeds from debt issuance 11,277 -
Transfers in - -
Transfers out (1,901,341) (4,504,777)
Total other financing sources (use: (1,868,999) (4,504,777)
Net changes in fund balance 13,103,779 3,118,810

Fund balances - beginning of year 38,723,315 3,636,066

Fund balances (deficit) - end of y $ 51,827,09 $ 6,754,87

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Other

Public Works SPOT 2017 Governmental
Fund ARPA Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ - $ - $ 10,395,688% 1,018,223 $ 46,441,342
- - - 1,952,593 2,044,988
2,323,268 1,210 - 10,109,252 29,807,821
55,619 - - 1,047,516 7,298,452
- - - 4,674 79,096
7,984 - - 341,047 2,104,427
2,386,871 1,210 10,395,688 14,473,305 87,776,126
- 1,210 76,755 2,371,286 16,877,552
- - - 2,942,375 24,076,291
6,120,858 - - 65 6,120,923
- - - 6,114,744 7,304,538
- - - 931,553 1,299,912
R - - 1,884 30,190
R - - 18,748 183,917
860,773 - 117,044 2,602,813 4,189,472
6,981,631 1,210 193,799 14,983,468 60,082,795
(4,594,760) - 10,201,889 (510,163) 27,693,331
11,262 - - - 32,327
- - - - 11,277
4,462,777 - - 1,988,941 6,451,718
- - - (45,600) (6,451,718)
4,474,039 - - 1,943,341 43,604
(120,721) - 10,201,889 1,433,178 27,736,935
11,777,113 - (6,115,901) 15,576,511 63,597,104
$ 11,656,399 $ - $ 4,085,998 $ 17,009,68 $ 91,334,03




LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 202

Net Changes in fund balances- total governmentedsu

Amounts reported for governmental activities in stetement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as exiperes, However, in
the statement of activities the cost of those adsedllocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as dégdien expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceediepreciation
in the current period.

Governmental funds do not report gains and lossesmles, retirements
or donations of capital assets. However, the se&t¢f activities
reports these amounts, excluding trade ins.

Long-term position, including capital leases pagadnid notes payable
are not due and payable in the current period thwedefore,
are not reported in the funds.

The Statement of Activities reports an increaseeuenue due to current
activity in deferred revenues that are only rembetethe governmental
fund level.

The long-term portion of the liability for the coepsated absences is not
recorded in the fund level, but are reported instladement of net
position. This is the current year change in thbility, reported
as an expense in the statement of activities.

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expengliin the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liaddiin the statement
of net position. This is offset by the total of taplease arrangements
issued during the year.

The liability related to long-term debt is not reded in the fund
level, but is reported in the statement of netfomsi This is the current
year change in long-term debt, which is offsethmsy tbtal reduction in
leasehold contingency recognized during the cueribd.

The change in the defined benefit net pensionlital@ind pension related
inflows and outflows are not reported in the goweent fund. This is the
net effect of the change in these balances int#ieraent of net position.

Internal service funds are accounted for as pragpydunds, therefore,
they are not included in the governmental funds.

Change in net position of governmental activitie

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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27,736,935

(4,207,290)

(7,906,322)

(11,277)

868,251

210,772

150,259

8,080,573

(231,616)

1,367,631

$

26,057,91




LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

June 30, 2021

Internal Service

Insurance
ASSETS Fund
Current assets:
Cash $ 216,899
Equity in pooled cash 2,035,994
Total assets $ 2,252,893
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities $ 350,000
Total liabilities 350,000
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 1,902,893
Total net position $ 1,902,893

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Internal Service

Insurance
Fund
Operating revenues
Insurance premiums $ 7,712,357
Total operating revenues 7,712,357
Operating expenses
Insurance claims 6,344,726
Total operating expenses 6,344,726
Operating income 1,367,631
Net changes in fund balances 1,367,631
Net position - beginning of year 535,262
Net position - end of year $ 1,902,893

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Internal Service

Insurance
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash from customers $ 7,712,357
Payments to suppliers (6,669,726)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,042,631
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,042,631
Balance - beginning of year 1,210,262
Balance - end of year $ 2,252,893

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash ued

by operating activities

Operating income $ 1,367,631
Decrease in accrued liabilities (325,000)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,042,631

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - CUSTODIAL FUNDS

June 30, 202

ASSETS

Custodial Funds

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash
Investments

Property tax receivable
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due from other governments

Total asset:

LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing units

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Fiduciary net positiol

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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$ 153,874
16,845,934
10,811,323

6,398,634
8
4,542,013

$ 38,751,78

$ 38,751,786

$ 38,751,78

$ -




LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - CUSTODIAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 202

ADDITIONS Custodial Funds
Contributions 564,768,181
Total additions $ 564,768,18
DEDUCTIONS
Payments to other governments $ 564,768,181
Total deductions $ 564,768,18

Net increase in fiduciary net position -
Net position - beginning of the year -
Net position - end of the ye $ -

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND - CHEYENNE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER P ENSION PLAN
December 31, 202

Cheyenne Regional
Medical Center

ASSETS Pension Pla
Cash and deposits $ 1,766,234
Investments, at fair value 90,408,435
Total asset: $ 92,174,66
NET POSITION
Net position restricted for pensic $ 92,174,66

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND - CHEYENNE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER P ENSION PLAN

Year Ended December 31, 20:

Cheyenne Regional
Medical Center

Pension Pla
Additions
Contributions:
Employer -
Total contributions -
Investment income:
Interest and dividends 1,522,168
Net appreciation (depreciation) 8,427,058
Less investment expense (22,034)
Net investment incom 9,927,192
Total additions 9,927,19;
Deductions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employeetiabations 4,848,415
Net increase in net positio 5,078,777
Beginning of year, January 1 87,095,892
End of year, December 92,174,66

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

Laramie County, Wyoming (referred to as “Laramieu@ty” or the “County”) (primary government) is a
municipal corporation governed by five elected cdssioners. The County provides the following sezgic
as authorized by statute: public safety, road aitjp maintenance and operation, health and ssersices,
culture-recreation, public improvements, planning @aoning, and general administrative services. Jdsc
financial statements include all funds of the priyngovernment, which is the County, as well as the
component units determined to be included in thenBgs financial reporting entity. The decisionitelude

a potential component unit in the County’s rep@rtentity is based on several criteria, includingale
standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accduilitta Based on the application of these critetiae
following is a brief review of certain entities lnded in the County’s reporting entity.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Starsl&olard (GASB) Statement No. 61, as amendlbd,
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, entities over which the County has significant agienal or financial
relationships such as boards, commissions and rdtigsaare considered component units. Componeits un
are either discretely presented or blended. Disgre¢sentation entails reporting component unérfaial

data in columns separate from the financial datd@fprimary government (the County). Blending rezpi

the component unit’'s balances and transactioneerted with the balances and transactions of thenty.
Each blended and discretely presented componetnthasia June 30 year end, except for the Cheyenne
Regional Medical Center Foundation, which has aebdxer 31 year end.

Blended Component Units

The Recreation Board serves all the citizens of the County and is goedrby an eight-member board that is
appointed by the County Commissioners. The ReomdBioard has been charged with maintaining and
supervising Clear Creek park and providing limiteehding for recreation projects and activities. The
Recreation Board is funded through annual apprbpridrom the County optional one percent salesusw
tax. The Recreation Board is reported as a spepignue fund of the County. The Recreation Boamsdo
not issue separate external financial statements.

The Laramie County Fair Board (Fair Board) maintains and manages the operatbttse County Fair and
conducts agricultural, industrial and other fainsl &xhibitions within the County. The Fair Boardissally
dependent upon the County because the Board of Gmiamers approves the Fair Board’s budget, levies
taxes (if necessary) and must approve any deldnsss. The Fair Board's taxes are levied undetatkiag
authority of the County and are included as pathefCounty’s total tax levy. The Fair Board doesissue
separate external financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The columns in the combining statements for compbo@its include the financial data of the County’s
other component units. They are reported in separalumns to emphasize that they are legally separa
from the County. The governing boards of these @amapt units are appointed entirely by the Board of
County Commissioners or jointly with other partaiimg governmental entities.

The Laramie County Weed and Pest Control District (District) was established for the purpose of
implementing and pursuing an effective programtha control of weeds and pests within the County.
The District is fiscally dependent upon the Coubgcause the Board of Commissioners approves the
District's budget and levies taxes (if necessany)behalf of the District. The District does notuss
separate external financial statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Laramie County Library System (Library System) maintains and manages the opsmatdf the
County Library and library system. The Library Smstis fiscally dependent upon the County because
the Board of Commissioners approves the Librante3y's budget, levies taxes (if necessary) and must
approve any debt issuances. The Library Systenxestare levied under the taxing authority of the
County and are included as part of the County@al taix levy. The Library System does not issue isg¢pa
external financial statements.

TheLaramie County Library Foundation, Inc. (Library Foundation) is a nonprofit foundationastshed

to receive, hold and expend gifts and contributitersthe enhancement of the Library System. The
Library Foundation supports purchases and activittest enhance the quality of the library services
available and which go beyond that which cannatarably be done with tax monies. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 6The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, the Library Foundation has been
determined to be a component unit and is presemsed discretely presented component unit in the
Library System’s financial statements. The Libr&gundation does issue separate external financial
statements, which can be obtained from the LibFamyndation’s administrative offices.

The City of Cheyenne-Laramie County Health Board (Health Department) serves all the citizens of the
County and is governed by a five-member board thiehCounty Commissioners appointing three of the
members and the City Council appointing the remnginiwvo members. The Health Department was
established to provide effective review and evabumabdf health service programs within the County as
well as to provide coordination between serviced amprocedure for contracting funding for services
the County. The Health Department does not issparate external financial statements.

The Cheyenne Regional Medical Center (“Hospital” or “Medical Center”), whose legal nariseMemorial
Hospital of Laramie County, is a general acute ¢ergpital that provides services to patients whe ar
generally residents of Laramie County. The Hospstalonsidered to be controlled by the County bseau
the County appoints the Hospital’'s Board of Trustagd the County has the authority to levy taxes (i
necessary) on the Hospital’'s behalf. The Hospibalsdssue separate external financial statemehishw
can be obtained from the Hospital's administratffeces.

The Cheyenne Regional Medical Center Foundation (Hospital Foundation) Cheyenne Regional Medical

Center Foundation (Foundation) was establisheti¢atth care purposes and to advance and assist in t

development, growth, and operation of the Medioaht€r. Funds raised are distributed to the Cheyenne
Wyoming community primarily through the purchaségmperty and equipment, supplies, and research
support. The Foundation has been determined to dmmgonent unit and is presented as a discretely
presented component unit in the Medical Centerianitial statements. Financial statements of the
Foundation are prepared under a separate covecamde obtained by contacting the Foundation's
Executive Director.

No elimination entries have been reported on thenl@oing Statement of Net Position and Combining
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes irPdéttion for the Hospital and the Hospital
Foundation since they have different year endsta@eitransactions that occurred between the two
entities created timing differences between revenagpenses, assets, and liabilities. Subsequéheto
Hospital Foundation’s year end of December 31, 20@0tributions totaling $2,786,631 were recognized
by the Hospital and will not be recognized as exiitares of the Hospital Foundation until the cakend
year ending December 31, 2021.

The Laramie County Landfill Board (Landfill Board) maintains and manages the operations of the
County Landfill in Burns, Wyoming. The Landfill Baais fiscally dependent upon the County because
the Board of Commissioners approves the Landfilhf8its budget, levies taxes (if necessary) and must
approve any debt issuances. The Landfill Board doesssue separate external financial statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ThelLaramie County Community Juvenile Services Joimtd?e Board(Joint Powers Board) was created
jointly by Laramie County and the City of Cheyermmesuant to the Wyoming Joint Powers Board Act,
Wyoming Statute 816-1-101 et seq. as amended. ®im Bowers Board provides a means for the
County and the City to collaborate on the estabiisht, maintenance and promotion of the development
of juvenile services in Laramie County. The JoiotMers Board is designed to allow early identifioati
and diversion of children at risk of entry into flaeenile court system, to prevent juvenile delieqcy,
and to provide a mechanism for other agencies, nafibhgntities and private businesses to partiggat
the process. The Joint Powers Board may also fiora to time construct and operate facilities and
programs to further provide juvenile justice seegicwithin the County. The Joint Powers Board is
fiscally dependent upon the County due to the tlaat the Joint Powers Board’s ability to pay itsitho
principal and interest is totally dependent on @winty leasing the new Juvenile Community Services
building located on the Archer site for the amoahthe debt service payments on its bonds. Thet Join
Powers Board does not issue separate externatfalatatements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. dtagement of net position and the statement dfites)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary adties of the primary government and its componenitsu
The effect of interfund activity has been removeoht these statement&overnmental activitieswhich
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernat@atenues, are reported separately fbarsiness-type
activities which rely to a significant extent on fees andarges for support. Likewise, thgrimary
governmentis reported separately from certain legally sejgacamponent unitdor which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degreghich the direct expenses of a given function o
segments are offset by program revenugisect expensesre those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segmenfrogram revenuesnclude: 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,isesy or privileges provided by a given functiorsegment,
and 2) grants and contributions that are restritbectheeting the operational or capital requiremerita
particular function or segment.

Taxes and other items not properly included amoragram revenues are reported insteadyeseral
revenues

Separate financial statements are provided for gowvental funds. Major individual governmental furaie
reported as separate columns in the fund finasteeéments. Nonmajor individual governmental fuacs
reported in a combined column.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinaatEStatement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are repousing theeconomic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accountirfgevenues are recorded when earned and expensesam@ed when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing r@flated cash flows. Property taxes are recognizegwenues

in the year for which they are levied. Grants aimdilar items are recognized as revenue as soorll as a
eligibility requirements imposed by the providervédeen met.

Governmental fund financial statements are repousidgthe current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accountiRgvenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to payliti@s in the current period. For this purpode County
considers revenues to be available if they areectt within 60 days of the end of the currentdigeriod.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a lighigiincurred, as under accrual accounting. Howedelt
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

service expenditures, as well as expendituresectkat compensated absences and claims and judgrasants
recorded only when payment is due.

Property and other ad valorem taxes, franchisestaigenses, various grants, charges for serviaed,
interest associated with the current fiscal peroal all considered to be susceptible to accrualsandave
been recognized as revenues of the current fism@bgh Fines and permits are not susceptible touatc
because generally they are not measurable untilisagceived by the government.

The government reports the following major governtakfunds:

TheGeneral Funds the general operating fund of the County. Alhgral tax revenues and other receipts
that are not allocated by law or contractual ages@no another fund are accounted for in this furiee
general operating expenditures, the fixed charged,the capital improvement costs that are not paid
through other funds are paid from the general fund.

TheOptional 1% Tax Funds a special revenue fund and is used to accaursiales and use tax revenue,
which is County voter approved.

The Public Works Funds a special revenue fund and is used to accaungds and special fuels tax,
which is used for county road maintenance.

The American Rescue Plan A@ARPA) Funds a special revenue fund and is used to accaurgrant
revenue awarded to the County through the Amefescue Plan Act of 2021.

The SPOT 2017 Construction Funs capital projects fund and is used to accountsfecific purpose
optional tax revenue, which is County voter apptbve

Additionally, the government reports the followifumd types:

The Fiduciary Fundaccounts for the activities of the Cheyenne Redittedical Center Pension Plan.
This pension trust fund accumulates resourcesdasipn benefit payments to qualified Medical Center
employees. The Medical Center Pension Plan ome@tea calendar year end, and the results of its
operations have not been restated to conform t€thmty’s year end. The Custodial Funds are fidycia
in nature and do not involve measurement of resdiltgperations. For the year ended June 30, 20&& th
was no change in fiduciary net position.

The Proprietary Fundaccounts for County activities that are similabtsiness operations in the private
sector or where the reporting focus is on detemgimet income, financial position, and changes in
financial position (economic resources measurenfieotis). Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.a@mpgrevenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and deliveringdgom connection with a proprietary fund’s ongoing
operations.

The Internal Service Funds used to account for the financing of goods emvises provided by the
County to the County itself on a cost-reimbursenteadis. The County’'s employee insurance plan is
accounted for as an internal service fund. Thecppal operating revenues of the insurance fund are
premiums paid by participating employees. Operagrgenses for the fund are the claims incurred
during the year and an estimate for claims incubngtchot reported.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity
Deposits and Investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents arédeved to be cash on hand, demand deposits, money
market accounts, and short-term investments wiidira maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments are accounted for at fair value asupé B0, 2021 and consist primarily of money market
funds, negotiable certificates of deposit, U.S. &ament securities, and pooled investment accounts.
Fair value is determined using the latest bid poicby the closing exchange price as of the balaheet
date. A portion of the County’s investment activgyconducted in a pooled investment account vhi¢h t
State of Wyoming, State Treasurer's Office, WYOSTARYOSTAR does issue separate external
financial statements, which can be obtained froelMityoming State Treasurer’s Office.

The fair value of the County’s position in WYOSTAR the same as the value of pooled shares.
WYOSTAR is regulated by the State Treasurer ofSkete of Wyoming with further oversight by the
Wyoming State Loan and Investment Board. The Coaldy invests in an external investment pool, the
Wyoming Government Investment Fund, which is au#enst by Wyoming State Statute 89-4-
831(a)(vii). The Wyoming Government Investment Budoes issue separate external financial
statements, which can be obtained from the Wyom@gvernment Investment Fund website
www.wgif.org. The fair value of $32,847,720 of tBeunty’s position in these funds is the same as the
value of the pool shares (net asset value) whielreported according to GASB 79 requirements. There
are no unfunded commitments, the redemption frecyués daily, and there is no redemption notice
period.

The County categorizes its fair value measuremairitisin the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hoegais based on the valuation inputs used to nteasu
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs aretegi@rices in active markets for identical assetsel 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs;dled inputs are significant unobservable inputse Th
County had recurring fair value measurements akipé 30, 2021 of negotiable certificates of deposit
and government securities in the amount of $1772&lwhich are valued using a matrix pricing model
and the market approach (Level 2 inputs).

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representativeeofding/borrowing arrangements outstanding at tlde en
of the fiscal year are referred to as either “du&dm other funds” (i.e., the current portion oferfund
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., timn-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reportatliago/from other funds.”

Property Taxes

Property is annually valued and assessed Janudrgxes are levied on or about August 1 and payable
in two installments on September 1 and March 1. Thanty bills and collects its own property taxes
and also taxes for all municipalities and politisabdivisions within the County. If not paid, progye
taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of May blle@ions and remittances of these taxes for other
taxing districts are accounted for in the respectigency funds of the County.

29



LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The County considers the levy date for propertgsato be the date when an enforceable legal claim t
property taxes arises. Accordingly, County propéaty receivables and revenues are recognized when
levied to the extent that they result in curremereables, which means when collected within theogde

or expected to be collected within 60 days of theal year end to be used to pay liabilities of¢bheent
period. Property taxes which are not current rexdsas, are offset as deferred inflows of resoumes
the fund financials, but are reported on the govem-wide financial statements as revenue and
receivables, with no amount being deferred wheietev

The County is permitted by Wyoming Statutes to leaes up to 12 mills of assessed valuation for all
purposes, exclusive of state revenue, except ®mptyment of public debt and interest thereon. The
combined tax rate to finance general governmergalices other than the payment of principal and
interest on long-term debt for the year ended Bhe2021 was 12 mills, which means that the County
has levied to the maximum amount available.

Inventories

All inventories are valued at cost using the firgfirst-out (FIFO) method. The consumption methed
used for reporting these inventories at the fundllef the financial statements.

Reported inventories in governmental funds are lgqudfset by nonspendable fund balance which
indicates they do not constituailable spendable resources even though such inventories are a
component of the fund balance.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, popgint, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roadsgésid
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in dipplicable governmental activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital asaet defined by the government as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at acquisition cost or estihzatguisition cost if purchased or constructed. ddea
capital assets are recorded at acquisition valtleeadate of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs thabtadd to the value of the asset or materialtgrek
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvemergscapitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary gowent, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight-line method ovefdhewing estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 10 to 40
Machinery and equipment 5to 10
Infrastructure 20

Compensated Absences

The County’s policy in relation to vacation, sickyp and other employee benefits is that any such
amounts unused at the end of the fiscal year asmued. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 800
hours. Accumulated sick leave is paid at the tirhtemination at one-half of accrued hours up t0 24
hours at the employees’ pay rate. Accumulated i@t#ave can be accumulated up to 240 hours and is
paid at the time of termination at the employees/ mte. All vacation pay is accrued when incuired
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the government-wide financial statements. A ligyifior these amounts is reported in governmental
funds only if they have matured, for example, assallt of employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statement, longatelebt and other long-term obligations are regbrte
as liabilities in the applicable governmental dtitg statement of net position. In the fund finahc
statements, governmental fund types recognize pdscérom lease purchase obligations which are
reported as other financing sources. Repaymermtngiierm debt (lease purchase obligations) is tegor
as debt service expenditures.

Defined Benefit Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabtigferred outflows of resources and deferred vslo

of resources related to pensions, and pension egpéerformation about the fiduciary net positiorttud
Wyoming Retirement System (WRS) and additions wd&ons from the WRS's fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as theg@oded by the WRS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contrimgjoare recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investmentsegerted at fair value.

Fund Balance and Net Position

Fund Balance — The County reports fund balance in the goverraidand financial statements in one of
the following five categories: Ionspendable fund balances include amounts which cannot be spent
because they are not in spendable fornr,e&yictions on fund balances have been externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws angutations of other governments or imposed by law
through constitutional provisions, 8pmmitments of fund balances were imposed by resolution of the
Board of County Commissioners; these balances neageteployed with appropriate due process, 4)
assigned fund balances express the intent of the County, as designatedhbyBoard of County
Commissioners, to utilize the funds for specifiagmses, and 5)nassigned fund balances represent
amounts that have not been restricted, committedssigned to a specific purpose.

Net Position — Net investment in capital assets represent thenty’s capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and outstanding principal balancededit attributable to the acquisition, construction,
improvement of those assets. Restricted net positapresents resources with legal or contractual
obligations to spend in accordance with restridionposed by external third parties. The unresict
classification includes all net position not inveskin capital assets or restricted.

When both restricted and unrestricted resourcesadable for use, it is the County’s policy toeus
restricted resources first, then unrestricted nessuas they are needed. In addition, when conuhitte
assigned, or unassigned amounts are availables®riuis the County’s policy to utilize committed
resources first, then assigned resources andlyfinalassigned resources as they are needed.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires managememéake estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and dssokes of contingent assets and liabilities aidéte of

the financial statements and the reported amourewénues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual amounts could differ frénose estimates.
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Unamortized Bond Discount

Original issue discount is amortized over the terfithe related obligation. Amortization of original
issue discount is included in interest expensherfinancial statements.

Note 2.  Laramie County Fair Board Dissolution and Reinstatenent

On November 20, 2018, the Laramie County Fair Beead dissolved and its operations were merged with
Laramie County. The Laramie County Fair Board wasvipusly reported as a discretely presented
component unit of Laramie County. Members of thssdived board filed a complaint for declaratory
judgment with the Laramie County District Court.eTharamie County District Court Judge found in fiavo
of the County. Members of the dissolved board alggethis decision to the Wyoming Supreme Court.
During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Wyomingresne Court ruled in favor of the appeal and
reinstated the Laramie County Fair Board. The ais/of the Laramie County Fair Board are presgiie
these financial statements as a blended compoménivithin the Events Department Fund. During tleary
ended June 30, 2021 the County received an OrdirJadgment from the District Court requiring the
County to transfer $220,052 plus certain propegty tollections to the Fair Board from the County’s
General Fund. Accordingly, the County has tranef&$220,274 to the Events Department Fund, inclided
transfers in and transfers out in the StatemerfRefenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds for the year ended June 30,.2021

Note 3.  Deposits and Investments

As of June 30, 2021, the County had the followimgestments on the statement of net position arehbal
sheets:

Fair Investment Less More
Investment Typ Value Rating Than 1 yr lto5yrs 6to10yrs Than 10 yrs
Governmental Securities
Federal Farm Credit Banks $ 245,760 AA+  $ - $ - $ 245760$%
Federal Home Loan Bank 2,381,829 AA+ - 495,145 1,686,720 199,964
Federal National Mortgage Association 6,255,887 (1) - - 4,852,809 1,403,078
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 804,598lot Rated - - 385,786 418,813
Governmental National Mortgage Association 185,168lot Rated - - 185,163
9,873,23 - 495,141 7,171,070  2,207,0L
Other Investment Types
Certificates of Deposit 7,388,510 Not Rated 804,241 5,337,743 1,246,526
Wyoming Government Investment Fund 32,847,720t Rated 32,847,720 - -
WYOSTAR Investment Pool 604,759 Not Rated 604,759 -
40,840,989 34,256,720 5,337,743 1,246,526
$ 50,714,22 $34,256,72 $5,832,88 $8,417,60. $2,207,01

(1) As of June 30, 2021, Federal National Mortgage Aission investments have ratings ranging from
AA+ to Not Rated.

Investments authorized by the County’s investmenicy: The County follows the guidelines set forth
Wyoming State Statute 9-4-831 as it relates toitkestment of public funds. The County’s investment
policy requires investments to comply with Statat@®es, which generally allows the County to inviast
U.S., state and local government securities anduts of any bank and savings associations whieh ar
federally insured. All investments made during temar were made within these statutory limits. The
County’s investment policy does not contain anycgpmeprovisions intended to limit the County’s egure

to interest rate risk, credit risk or concentratdreredit risk.

32




LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wyoming Statute §9-4-817 authorizes agencies ofStla¢e to deposit public funds in financial indtdas
authorized to conduct business in the State of WiygnThese deposits must be fully insured by theeFa
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or securedabgledge of assets including bonds, debentures and
other securities (which by law) the State Treasumay invest. Alternatively, a depository may pledge
deposits with conventional real estate mortgageslaans connected with mortgages at a ratio of ack

one half (1.5:1) of the value of public funds secliby the securities. At June 30, 2021, all depasére
fully insured with a combination of FDIC insuranaed pledged collateral held in the name of the Goun
All deposits were held by a qualified depositoryoatiined in State statutes.

As of June 30, 2021, cash and investments aretegpior the financial statements, as follows:

Primary Fiduciary
Government Funds Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,713,06¥ 153,874 $ 1,866,941
Equity in pooled cash 59,571,357 16,845,934 76,417,291
Investments 39,902,904 10,811,323 50,714,227

$ 101,187,328 $ 27,811,131 $% 128,998,459

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes inrederates will adversely affect the fair valueaafinvestment.

The County investments are held in external poategstment accounts and brokerage firms and, as a
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losaesing from rising interest rates, the Countgiaipts to
match its investment maturities to expected cagW fheeds. With this investment focus, investmengs a
expected to reach maturity with limited gains ossles. The County has chosen the segmented time
distribution method for its interest rate disclasuas shown in the previous table.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuka investment will not fulfill its obligation tthe holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignoifeatrating by a nationally recognized statisticing
organization. Under investment agreements with WYSS and Wyoming Government Investment Fund
(WGIF), the County has invested monies at a vagiabld fixed contract rate of interest, respectively
Because the security is essentially a written @atfrthere is no rating available for WYOSTAR; heee
under Wyoming statutes, underlying providers acgiired to have the highest rating from at least afitbe
nationally recognized rating organizations. As wfied 30, 2021, WYOSTAR did not have a quality servic
credit rating. The WGIF continues to hold an AAAating by Standard and Poors indicating that “saifety
excellent” and the pool has “superior capacity gntain principal value and limit exposure to l6ss.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The County does not have a formal policy that aflaw limits an investment in any one issuer thahis
excess of a specified percentage of the Countya tovestments. The County’s investments in Fddera
National Mortgage Association is in excess of 5%hef County’s total investments at June 30, 2021.
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Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk thahim ¢évent of a bank failure, the County’s deposiay ime lost.
The County does not have a formal policy for cuistiocredit risk. However, Wyoming statutes requat
the County’s deposits in excess of the Federal slapyg insurance amount be collateralized. At J8@e
2021, the County’s deposits were fully collateradizas required by statutes.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that in thengé\ad the failure of the counterparty, the Countij wot be
able to recover the value of its investments otatelal securities that are in the possession afwdside
party. Wyoming statutes limit the type of investisethe County can use. Statutes limit investments
primarily to securities issued or guaranteed by th&. Treasury or agencies of the United States
government, therefore, reducing the County’s expoga custodial credit risk for its investments.eTh
County requires collateral on two types of investtae certificates of deposits and repurchase aggats.

In order to anticipate market changes and provitevel of security on all funds, the collateralipatlevel

will be 102% of market value of principal and aamtinterest. All County investments were held bykers

or the Treasurer of the State of Wyoming in the@gs name and were fully collateralized by goveemn
securities as required by statutes.

Note 4. Accounts Receivable

Receivables for the primary government for the yeaded June 30, 2021 including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts are as fadtow

Receivables
Miscellaneous $ 349,765
Delinquent property taxes 1,030,606
Less allowance for uncollectible (147,000)
$ 1,233,37.
Note 5. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Due to/due from between funds for the year endeé 30, 2021 were as follows:

Fund Level Financial Statements
Due From / To Other Funds

Func Receivabl Payabli
Governmental Activities:
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 149,918% 226,724

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Other County Operating Funds 3,663 2,532
EMA Fund - 50,000
Law Enforcement Funds 2,787 -
Enhanced 911 System Fund - 97,386
Events Center Fund 220,274 -

$ 376,64: $ 376,64
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These balances resulted from the time lag betwbendates that: (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, @)dactions are recorded in the accounting systed(3)
payments between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers at June 30, 2021 consistetiefdllowing:

Fund Level Financial Statements
Operating Transfers
Func In Oul
Governmental Activities:
Major Funds:

General Fund $ - $ 1,901,341
Special Revenue Funds:
Optional 1% Tax - 4,504,777
Public Works 4,462,777 -

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Enhanced 911 System 465,229 -
EMA Fund 95,640 -
Event Center Fund 1,170,474 -
Other County Operating Funds 133,600 45,600
Homeland Security Fund 55,022 -
Special Courts 45,600 -
GIS Coop Fund 23,376 -

$ 6,451,711 $ 6,451,71

Transfers are used to: 1) move revenues from the fioat statute or budget requires to collect therhe
fund that statute or budget requires to expend theerd 2) to use unrestricted revenues collectetthén
General Fund to finance various programs accoufdedn other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.
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Note 6.  Capital Assets
Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the primary governmamntthe year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activitie Balanct Additions Deletion: Transfer Balanct
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 7812374 $ - $  (400,000% - $ 7412374
Construction in progress 41,539,961 750,989 - (41,627,036) 663,914
Total capital assets not bein 49,352,335 750,989 (400,000) (41,627,036) 8,076,288
depreciatec
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 78,984,753 6,164 (9,335,929) 41,617,566 111,272,554
Machinery and equipment 38,854,258 1,447,389 (323,346) 9,470 39,987,771
Infrastructure 96,700,727 2,045,753 (182,571) - 98,563,909
Intangible Assets 110,321 - - - 110,321
Total capital assets bein
depreciatec 214,650,059 3,499,306  (9,841,846) 41,627,036 249,934,555
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (33,986,435) (2,445,586) 1,877,982 - (34,554,039)
Machinery and equipment (23,932,192) (2,729,587) 274,971 - (26,386,808)
Infrastructure (49,864,550) (3,271,413) 182,571 - (52,953,392)
Intangible Assets (31,363) (10,999) - - (42,362)
Total accumulated depreciatior (107,814,540) (8,457,585) 2,335,524 - (113,936,601)
Total capital assets bein(
depreciated, ne 106,835,519  (4,958,279) (7,506,322) 41,627,036 135,997,954
Governmental activities
capital assets, ne $156,187,85 $ (4,207,290 $ (7,906,322 $ - $144,074,24

Assets acquired through capital leases of $6,1098% included in Buildings above. The related
accumulated depreciation on those assets was $&0#R@s of June 30, 2021; the current year depi@tia
of $154,496 was expensed in general governmentisitass.

Assets acquired through capital leases of $89,089reluded in Machinery and equipment above. The
related accumulated depreciation on those assets $43,505 as of June 30, 2021; the current year
depreciation of $16,192 was expensed in generargawental activities.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/prmgiof the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 1,871,653
Public safety 2,226,885
Public works 3,803,996
Health, welfare and recreation 555,051

Total depreciation expense- governmental activitie $ 8,457,58!

Discretely Presented Component Units

Activity for the Laramie County Weed and Pest CohDistrict for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as
follows:

Beginning Transfers and  Transfers and Ending
Balanct Additions Deletion: Balanct
Capital assets, not being depreci
Land $ 53,870 $ - $ - $ 53,870
Total capital assets not bein
depreciatec 53,870 - - 53,870
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 3,540,549 - - 3,540,549
Machinery and equipment 669,462 38,442 (47,391) 660,513
Total capital assets bein
depreciatec 4,210,011 38,442 (47,391) 4,201,062
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,030,226) (129,156) - (1,159,382)
Machinery and equipment (474,320) (49,373) 47,391 (476,302)
Total accumulated depreciatior (1,504,546) (178,529) 47,391 (1,635,684)
Total capital assets bein
depreciated, ne 2,705,465 (140,087) - 2,565,378
Capital assets, ne $ 2,759,33 $ (140,087 $ - $ 2,619,24
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Activity for the Laramie County Library System ftire year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Transfersand  Transfers and Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 2,916,089 $ - $ - $ 2,916,089
Total capital assets not bein
depreciatec 2,916,089 - - 2,916,089
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 19,113,546 - - 19,113,546
Machinery and equipment 4,534,753 14,552 (585,292) 3,964,013
Library contents 6,217,330 278,980 - 6,496,310
Total capital assets bein
depreciatec 29,865,629 293,532 (585,292) 29,573,869
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (5,726,621)  (425,919) - (6,152,540)
Machinery and equipment (4,107,538) (80,572) 492,493 (3,695,617)
Library contents (5,518,136) (288,456) - (5,806,592)
Total accumulated depreciatior (15,352,295) (794,947) 492,493  (15,654,749)
Total capital assets bein
depreciated, ne 14,513,334 (501,415) (92,799) 13,919,120
Capital assets, ne $ 17,429,42 $ (501,415 $ (92,799 $ 16,835,20
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Activity for the City of Cheyenne — Laramie Courtgalth Board for the year ended June 30, 2021 was a
follows:

Beginning Transfersand  Transfers and Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 29,925 $ - $ $ 29,925
Total capital assets not bein
depreciatec 29,925 - 29,925
Capital assets being depreciated
Building and improvements 473,914 - 473,914
Machinery and equipment 1,055,608 47,710 1,103,318
Total capital assets bein
depreciatec 1,529,522 47,710 1,577,232
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and improvements (206,441) (46,889) (253,330)
Machinery and equipment (885,766) (81,139) (966,905)
Total accumulated depreciatior (1,092,207) (128,028) (1,220,235)
Total capital assets bein
depreciated, ne 437,315 (80,318) 356,997
Capital assets, ne $ 467,240 3 (80,318 $ $ 386,92
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Activity for the Laramie County Landfill Board fdhe year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Transfersand  Transfers and Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 41,853 $ $ 41,853
Total capital assets not bein
depreciatec 41,853 41,853
Capital assets being depreciated
Building and improvements 326,682 38,578 365,260
Machinery and equipment 2,112,150 124,748 (7,486) 2,229,412
Other improvements 1,760,773 - 1,760,773
Total capital assets bein
depreciatec 4,199,605 163,326 (7,486) 4,355,445

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and improvements

(129,711) (9,171) (138,882)
Machinery and equipment (1,469,705)  (193,234) 7,486 (1,655,453)
Other improvements (354,943) (176,077) - (531,020)
Total accumulated depreciatior (1,954,359) (378,482) 7,486 (2,325,355)
Total capital assets bein
depreciated, ne 2,245,246 (215,156) - 2,030,090
Capital assets, ne $ 228709 $ (215,156 $ - $ 2,071,94

Assets acquired through capital leases of $1,189%#%6 included in Machinery and equipment aboves Th

related accumulated depreciation on those assets$@d8,443 as of June 30, 2021; the current year

depreciation of $108,621 was expensed in genekedrgmental activities.
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Activity for the Medical Center, excluding the Hatsh Foundation, for the year ended June 30, 2024 a8
follows:

Beginning Transfers and  Transfers and Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 7,953,988 $ - $ - $ 7,953,988
Construction in progress 6,298,675 25,191,234 (24,324,005) 7,165,904
Total capital assets not bein
depreciatec 14,252,663 25,191,234  (24,324,005) 15,119,892
Capital assets being depreciated
Building and improvements 265,302,374 - 6,120,909 271,423,283
Machinery and equipment 159,205,348 233,898 (6,925,162) 152,514,084
Total capital assets bein
depreciatec 424,507,722 233,898 (804,253) 423,937,367
Less accumulated depreciation (240,791,478)27,469,530) 23,133,484 (245,127,524)
Total capital assets bein
depreciated, ne 183,716,244  (27,235,632) 22,329,231 178,809,843
Capital assets, ne $ 197,968,90 $ (2,044,398 $ (1,994,774 $ 193,929,73

Note 7.  Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Liabilities consisted of the following aing 30, 2021:

Primary Government Component Units

Accounts payable $ 2,052,323 $ 9,968,318
Accrued payroll liabilities 1,587,162 20,260,076
Construction payables - 760,602
Accrued interest payable - 446,883
Accrued health insurance claims payable 350,000 -

$ 3,989,485 $ 31,435,879
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of debt transactionghe primary government for the year ended June 30,
2021:

Due
Balance Payments and Balance Within
June 30, 2020  Additions Retirements  June 30, 2021 CGree Y

Capital lease obligatior
Juvenile Service Cent $ 875,000 $ - $ 165,000 $ 710,000 $ 170,000

Capital lease obligation - offi
equipmer 4,864 11,277 2,255 13,886 4,171

Capital leases obligatior
heavy equipmel 34,302 - 16,663 17,639 17,638

Economic development no
and leasehold contingenc
commercial building (Note 1 8,080,573 - 8,080,573 - -

Economic development note
mortgage loan (Note 1 524,276 - 524,276 - -

Compensated absen 2,714,292 345,978 556,750 2,503,520 325,000
$ 1223330 $ 357,25' $ 9,34551 $ 3,24504' $ 516,80!
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The following is a summary of the outstanding datiitgations as of June 30, 2021:

$2,355,000 lease/purchase obligation on a site and jieseeiter improvements
due in annual principal payments ranging from $140,000 t85%100, including
semi-annual interest through June 2025; interegfing from 1.55% to 6.00%.

$ 710,000
$21,702 lease/purchase obligations on office equipmeset idutotal monthly
installments of $382, including interest through May 20Rferest ranging from
0.00% to 4.00%. 13,886
$68,727 lease/purchase obligation on a vehicle due in &rningtallments of
$18,547, including interest through October 20Rfgriest rate 5.35%. 17,639
Accrued compensated absences 2,503,520
$  3,245,04!
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Long-term debt is being serviced in the Generaldramd the Events Department Fund. The above
lease/purchase obligations contain a “no fundiglige so that the obligations do not bind a fu@eoenty

board as required by Wyoming Statues.

The future minimum mortgage payable and capitabdeabligations and the net present value of the
minimum payments for the mortgage payable and alfitse obligations as of June 30, 2021 were as

follows:

Year ended June :
2022
202¢
202
202¢
202¢

Principa Interest Total
$ 191,80¢ $ 4391 $ 235,72
177,866 32,721 210,587
182,259 22,133 204,392
187,351 11,241 198,592
2,240 45 2,285
$ 741,525 $ 110,055 $ 851,580

The following is a summary of debt transactions tfoe discretely presented component units for ey

ended June 30, 2021:

Weed and Pest Control Distt
Compensated absen

County Library Systel
Compensated absen

City of Cheyenne-Laramie County Health Bc
Compensated absen

County Landfill Boar:
Capital leases, equipm:
Compensated absen

Total Landfill Boart

Due
Balance Balance Within
June 30,2020  Additions Payments  June 30,2021 One Year
$ 40,60t $ - $ 3000 $ 37606 $  1,00(
$ 240,76¢ $ - $ 29628 $ 21114 §
$ 190,80 $ 23,13 $ 30,728 $ 183,20¢ $ 40,00
$ 333,665 $ - 3 164,174 169,491% 126,610
1,734 1,704 - 3,438
$ 69228 $ 1,70/ § 164,17 $ 172,92¢ $ 126,61
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Laramie County Landfill Board $760,345 lease/pusehabligation on hea\
equipment due in quarterly installments of $43,2@dluding interest through
September 1, 2022; interest at 3.2% $ 169,491

Revenue Bonds

On November 23, 2010, the Laramie County Community Jlev&ervices Joint Powers Board issued Taxable
Direct Pay Recovery Zone Economic Development Lease Revenue Bones,2840 to finance the construction
of a juvenile service center. A summary of the revenue bondslas® 30, 2021 is as follows:

Laramie County Community Juvenile Services Joinwés Board
Taxable Direct Pay Recovery Zone Economic Develaogme
Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, due in anntallmnents
of $140,000 to $185,000 through June 2025, intere$t55%
to 6.00%, original amount issued $2,355,000, odbissue discount

of $19,567

Balance June 30, 2020 $ 875,000

Less Payments 165,000

Balance June 30, 2021 710,000

Less original issue discount 5,214
Net bonds payabli 704,786

Less current maturities 170,000
Long-term portion of revenue bonds payabl $ 534,78t

The annual requirements to amortize the bonds paypbincipal and interest outstanding at June2821
are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30:

Principa Interes
2022 $ 170,000 $ 42,600
2023 175,000 32,400
2024 180,000 21,900
202t 185,00( 11,10(

$ 710,000 $ 108,000
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Note 9.

Long-Term Debt — Medical Center

Long-term debt for the Medical Center at June 8212s as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2020 Additions Payments June 30, 2021 One Year
Hospital Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012 $ 83,100,008 - $ (83,100,000% - $ -
2012 bond premium 3,215,878 - (3,215,878) - -
Hospital Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2021 $ - $ 71,615,000% - 71,615,000 2,250,000
2021 bond premium - 11,450,937 (221,517) 11,229,420 -
15.86% capital lease 1,370,338 - (213,253) 1,157,085 258,542
3.00% capital lease 517,066 - (254,660) 262,406 262,406
3.00% capital lease 150,716 - (150,716) - -
1.99% note payable 11,932,261 - (1,152,553) 10,779,708 1,175,699
1.39% note payable 12,305,578 - (1,176,036) 11,129,542 1,192,487
1.51% note payable - 10,000,000 (309,593) 9,690,407 938,177
1.88% note payable - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 917,605

$ 112,591,83 $103,065,93 $ (89,794,20€ $ 125,863,56 $ 6,994,91i

Laramie County, Wyoming, Hospital Refunding Revelends, Series 2012, were refinanced in January
2021 from the proceeds of the Laramie County, WymmHospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2021.
The Medical Center completed the refinancing taucedits total debt service payments over the néxt 2
years by approximately $32.6 million and to obt@meconomic gain (difference between the presdoesa

of the old and the new debt service payments) pfagimately $21.9 million.

The Laramie County, Wyoming, Hospital Refunding awe Bonds, Series 2021, 3.0% - 4.0% serial bonds,
final maturity of May 2042, secured by the revenagshe Medical Center. Principal payments are itue
May of each year and interest payments are due-aemially in November and May.

15.86% Capital Lease Sparks Building, due in mgnithdtallments beginning at $31,067 including iastr
with payments increasing by 2% each calendar yeBetember 2024.

3.00% Capital Lease, due in annual installment®2310,388 including interest, to October 2021, sediloy
equipment.

3.00% Capital Lease, paid in full during 2021.

1.99% Note Payable due in monthly installments 45961 including interest to April 2030. The note
payable is secured by various capital assets dfitraical Center,

1.39% Note Payable due in monthly installments df1$634 including interest to February 2031. Thino
payable is secured by various capital assets d¥igical Center.

1.51% Note Payable due in monthly installments&8,836 including interest, to February 2031. Theeno
payable is secured by various capital assets d¥igical Center.

1.88% Note Payable due in monthly installments 3,477 including interest, to February 2031. Theeno
payable is secured by various capital assets dfitraical Center.
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2.53% Capital Lease, paid in full during 2020.
3.00% Capital Lease, paid in full during 2020.

Scheduled maturities on long-term debt obligatiamsas follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 6,994,916 $ 3,525,611 % 10,520,527
2023 6,942,646 3,310,917 10,253,563
2024 7,178,271 3,090,466 10,268,737
2025 7,186,317 2,861,710 10,048,027
2026 7,149,415 2,674,776 9,824,191
2027-2031 34,567,583 10,566,855 45,134,438
2032-2036 18,020,000 6,621,900 24,641,900
2037-2041 21,805,000 2,850,450 24,655,450
2042 4,790,000 143,700 4,933,700

$ 11463414 $ 3564638 $ 150,280,53

Note 10. Risk Management - County

The County is a member of the Wyoming AssociatidnRisk Management (W.A.R.M.). W.A.R.M.
administers a risk management fund providing ther@owith loss protection for general liability, pic
official’s liability, automobile liability to inclule elected and appointed officials, employees,aardorized
volunteers. Under most circumstances, the Countggsimum loss per occurrence is limited to $250,060
claimant/$500,000 per occurrence.

Annually W.A.R.M. calculates the premiums for riskverage required by participating agencies. This
premium is calculated upon actuarially pooling picas including such items as insurable value, hos®ry
exposure, and risk management programs. The Agtafldssociation of W.A.R.M. defines the premium to
be calculated based upon each such political sidiglivs payroll and a Pool Assessment Factor fatging
each coverage year, supplementary assessmentsemagde.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County 7&8@,337 to W.A.R.M. for potential claims and expens
All County departments are covered by the Courigls management program.

The County also participates in two other risk nggamaent programs: Workers’ Compensation Act and
Unemployment Compensation Act. Amounts paid by @loeinty to the State for Workers’ Compensation
during the fiscal year 2021 was $251,517. Amourasl by the County to the State for Unemployment
Claims was $70,817.

Employees of the County and two of its componeirtisiware covered by the County’s medical self-insoea
plan. The Entities’ costs for this plan are refekttin the funds paying the coverage, premiums and
administrative costs. The self-insurance plan pored as an internal service fund in the accomipgny
financial statements. The County has a contradt withird-party administrator to process paymentse
County also maintains a stop-loss policy to lintie tpotential for individual and aggregate claims.
Management has estimated an accrual for incurreddiueported (IBNR) claims.
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At June 30, 2021, the IBNR was $350,000. Changes to the IBNR for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2021
are asfollows:

Beginning of Estimated End of
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Claims Clam Fiscal Year
Ending Liability Incurred Payments Liability
June 30. 2020 $ - $ 5982901 $ 5307901 $ 675,000
June 30, 2021 $ 675,000 $ 6,344,726 $ 6,669,726 $ 350,000

Notel1ll. Fund Balance

The following table outlines the specific purpose details for governmental fund balances of the County:

Other
Optiona Public Nonmajor
General 1% Tax Works SPOT Governmental
Fund Balances Fund Fund Fund 2017 Funds Total
Nonspendable;
Prepaid assets $ 274158 $ - $ 608274 $ - 8 17889 $ 900,321
Restricted for:
Community Facilities 270,034 - - - - 270,034
SPOT tax operations and
maintenance - - - - 6,878,355 6,878,355
911 charges per statute - - - - 142,828 142,828
Abandoned Vehicles - - - - 148,734 148,734
Grant agreement - - - - 30,345 30,345
Road maintenance - - 11,048,118 - - 11,048,118
State Statutes - - - 4,085,988 2,519,120 6,605,108
GIS COOP - - - - 27,483 27,483
Committed to:
Specific projects - 6,754,876 - - - 6,754,876
Economic devel opment - - - - 144,543 144,543
Law enforcement - - - - 1,279,992 1,279,992
Assigned to:
Emergency reserves-Wyo
Statute 16-4-105 20,527,522 - - - - 20,527,522
Planning and building
inspections - - - - 4,462,182 4,462,182
County improvements - - - - 1,358,218 1,358,218
Unassigned 30,755,380 - - - - 30,755,380
$ 51,827,094 $ 6,754,876 $ 11,656,392 $ 4,085988 $ 17,009,689 $ 91,334,039
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Note 12. Retirement Commitment — Wyoming Retirement System

Plan description: Substantially all employees ef @ounty and component units, excluding law enfoerg
employees, the Medical Center and non-benefittesitipos, are provided with pensions through theliBub
Employees Pension Plan (Public Employees) - awgidg¢ecost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Wyoming Retireng&ydtem (WRS). Substantially all full-time County
law enforcement employees are provided with retmeirdisability and death benefits through the Law
Enforcement Pension Plan (Law Enforcement) — awide cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by WRS. The authoritggtablish and amend benefits and contribution rates
rests with the Legislature of the State of WyomiWRS is granted the authority to administer thenPig
Wyoming State Statutes 9-3-401 through 432. WR&ess publicly available financial report that dsn
obtained at http://retirement.state.wy.us/aboutis@label=financial#categories

Benefits provided: The determination of Law Enfaonemt retirement disability and death benefits is
dependent on years of service and average saldies.determination of Public Employees retirement
benefits is dependent upon the employee’s initighleyment date.

Public Employees Service Retirement TieFdll retirement at age 60 or qualifies for theldRaf 85.
Early retirement is permitted at age 50 or 25 yedirservice. Formula for retirement equals 2.125%
times the number of years of service times theetlyear highest average salary for the first 15 g/ear
and 2.25% times the number of years of serviceditne three-year highest average over 15 years.

Public Employees Service Retirement TieFall retirement at age 65 or qualifies for the d&raf 85.
Early retirement is permitted at age 55 or 25 ye@&rservice. Formula for retirement equals 2% times
the number of years of service times the five-yeghest average salary.

Public Employees Disability BenefitRartial or total disability retirement is availaio any member
who becomes incapacitated, mentally or physicalhd cannot continue in the performance of his/her
duties. To qualify, the member must have at le@sydars of service and must be “in service” at the
time of application for disability retirement. Upaetirement for a partial disability, the member
receives a monthly disability retirement benefit the period of his disability equal to 50% of the
normal benefit payable to the member, as if the be¥mvas eligible for normal retirement benefits.
Upon retirement for a total disability, the membeceives a monthly disability benefit equal to 100%
of his service retirement benefit as if the membas eligible for normal retirement benefits. Didigpi
benefits are payable for the life of the membeurdil death.

Public Employees Survivors’' Benefit€ertain surviving dependents receive benefitsethasn the
deceased member’'s compensation and their relatjptsiihe deceased, as well as the benefit option
selected by the member at the date of retirement.

Law Enforcement Retirement BenefiBenefits are based on a formula involving yedrsearvice,
highest average salary, and age at retiremente@ilyr the benefit formula entitles retirees to%2.6f
the highest average salary for each year of sewittea ceiling on the benefit at 75% of the highes
average salary.

Law Enforcement Disability BenefitRartial or total disability retirement is availatio any member
who becomes incapacitated, mentally or physicalhg cannot continue in the performance of his/her
duties from an individual and specific act incurneflile employed. To qualify for duty disability
retirement, there is no age or service requiremant, the member receives a monthly disability
retirement benefit for the period of his/her didigpequal to 62.5% of final salary. To quality fobn-
duty disability retirement, the member must havieast 10 years of service, and the member recaives
monthly disability benefit for the period of hisfidisability equal to 50% of final salary.
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Law Enforcement Survivor's BenefiSurviving spouse receives benefits dependent treimember
was on-duty at the time of death. Additional beisedre available for additional qualified dependent

Contributions: Per Title 9-3-412 and 413 of Statat8es, for the year ended June 30, 2021, Public
Employees member contributions were required t®.086 of compensation and employer contributions
were required to be 9.12% of compensation. Law Eefoent member contributions were required to be
8.60% of compensation and employer contributionewequired to be 8.60% of compensation.

In accordance with Title 9-3-412 (c) (ii) of St&&tutes, the County and component units can Elquy a
percentage of the members’ contributions in additiothe employer’s contribution. The County hactdd

to pay 5.52% of compensation to the Law Enforceniarision Plan and 5.50% of compensation for full-
time employees to the Public Employees Pension. Hlatial contributions paid by the County, includithg
percentage of the members’ contributions the Cobhaty elected to pay, for the year ended June 3, 20
were $1,337,175 to Law Enforcement Pension Plan$dndd5,404 to Public Employees Pension Plan. The
following percentages have been elected to be fpaithember contributions, and resulted in the fellg
total contributions to the Public Employees Pensiklan for the year ended June 30, 2021, for the
component units:

Elected
Percentage to
Pay for Member Total

Contribution: Contributions
Weed and Pest Control 9.00% $ 42,734
Library System 9.00% $ 440,957
Health Board 6.00% $ 363,444
Landfill Board 9.00% $ 50,101

Pension liabilities, pension expense, and defeowgflows of resources and deferred inflows of reses
related to pensionsAt June 30, 2021, the County’'s and component umpitsportionate share of the net
pension liabilities are shown in the following tabllhe net pension liability was measured as ofeDer

31, 2020, and the total pension liability used &bicelate the net pension liability was determingdaln
actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020 and dditeward to the measurement date December 31,.2020
The County’s and component units’ proportions & tiet pension liabilities were based on the raiatiip

of the County’s and component units’ total conttibus to the plans for the year ended Decembe@20

to the contributions of all participating employeis the same period. The proportionate sharesfas o
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are atsmsh the following table.
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Net Proportionate Proportionate
Pension Share at Share at
Liability December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
County:
Law Enforcement $ 4,024,756 5.908141000¢ 5.634700000¢
Public Employees 15,057,102 0.692803000¢ 0.658014100¢
Total County $ 19,081,858
Component Units:
Weed and Pest Control $ 295,392 0.013591500% 0.013040700%
Library System $ 2,982,947 0.137250500% 0.135037600%
Health Board $ 2,475,372 0.113896100% 0.124811000%
Landfill Board $ 194,138 0.008932600% 0.008425000%

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the County ampaeent units recognized the following pension
expenses:

Pension
Expense
County:
Law Enforcement $ 623,041
Public Employees 802,654
Total County $ 1,425,695
Component Units:
Weed and Pest Control $ 15,747
Library System $ 159,013
Health Board $ 131,955
Landfill Board $ 10,349
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At June 30, 2021, the County reported deferrediamugf of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Law Public
Enforcemen Employees Total
Difference between expected and
actual experience $ 093,858 $ 286,132 $ 1,279,990
Changes in assumptions 2,378,117 93,513 2,471,630
Changes in proportionate share
of contributions 306,764 945,994 1,252,758

Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 370,196 510,179 880,375
$ 4,048,935 $ 1,835,818 $ 5,884,753

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Law Public
Enforcemen Employees Total
Difference between expected and
actual experience $ 209,848 $ 130,929 $ 340,777
Changes in assumptions 3,583,986 - 3,583,986

Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 2,572,239 3,301,113 5,873,352

$ 6,366,073 $ 3,432,042 $ 9,798,115
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At June 30, 2021, the component units reportedrafeoutflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following ses:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Weed and Pest Control: Resource Resource
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 6135, $ 2,569
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 64,762
Changes in proportionate share of contributions 24,9 3,645
Changes in assumption 1,835 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2121, -
$ 43,584 $ 70,976
Library System:
Difference between expected and actual experience $ ,6856 $ 25,938
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 653,980
Changes in proportionate share of contributions aGh, -
Changes in assumption 18,526 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date ,53M8

$ 349408 $ 679,918

Health Board:

Difference between expected and actual experience $ ,04a7 $ 21,525
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 542,700
Changes in proportionate share of contributions WRY, 228,562
Changes in assumption 15,373 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 9810,

$ 688295 $ 792,787

Landfill Board:

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 6893, $ 1,688
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 42,563
Changes in proportionate share of contributions 35,7 23,249
Changes in assumption 1,206 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 059,3

$ 30,938 $ 67,500
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Deferred outflows of resources related to pensresslting from County and component unit contribog
subsequent to the measurement date will be recedj@g a reduction of the net pension liabilityha year
ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported asretbfeutflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognizgekitsion expense as follows for the County and corapt
units:

2022 2023 2024 2025 Total
County:
Law Enforcement $ (646,355)$ (689,267) $ (696,581) $ (655,131) $ (2,687,334)
Public Employees (301,320)  (444,672) (524,878) (835,533)  (2,106,403)

Total County ~ $  (947,675) $ (1,133,939) $ (1,221,459) $ (1,490,664) $ (4,793,737)

Component Units:

Weed and Pest Control $ (6,176% (4,932) $ (11,104) $ (16,392) $ (38,604)
Library System $ (64,371) $ (76,486) $ (132,656) $ (165,527) $ (439,040)
Health Board $ 6,434 $ 14,801 $  (79,346) $ (137,362) $  (195,473)
Landfill Board $ (12,303) $  (16,386) $ (6,405) $  (10,773) $  (45,867)

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liabilitthe January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation, anidol
forward to a measurement date of December 31, 2@20determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and applied to all periods includettiénmeasurement:

Law Enforcement Public Employees
Inflation 2.25% 2.25%
Salary increases, including inflation 4.75% - 8.75% 5020 - 6.50%
Investment rate of return, net of pension plan
investment expense, including inflation 7.00% 7.00%
Payroll growth rate 2.50% 2.50%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthputant Mortality Table and Employee Mortality
Table, as appropriate, with adjustments for madwptaiprovements based on Scale MP-2017.
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Long-term expected rate of return: The long-termeeted rate of return on pension plan investmeiats w
determined using a building-block method in whiglpected future real rates of return (expected raetic
returns, net of pension plan investment expenseidfation) are developed for each major assetsclas
These real rates of return are combined to protluedong-term expected rate of return by weighting
expected future real rates of return by the taageet allocation percentage and by adding expédtation.
The target allocation and best estimates of aritienreal rates of return for each major asset chss
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected

Geometric Real Arithmetic Real
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return eRdtReturn
Fixed income 21.00% 1.00% 1.34%
Equity 48.50% 5.23% 7.34%
Marketable alternatives 19.00% 3.47% 4.50%
Private markets 9.50% 4.53% 5.82%
Cash 2.00% -1.00% -1.00%

Total 100.00%

Experience analysis: An experience study was cdrdumn behalf of all WRS'’s plans covering the fixgzar
period ended December 31, 2016. That study prowad@etailed analysis concerning the developmetfieof
long-term inflation rate, real rate of return aridcdunt rate. The study also analyzed each majoiagal
assumption (e.g., mortality, salary increases,ragent, termination and disability) and proposed
assumptions consistent with the findings.

Discount rateThe discount rate used to measure the total perisibitity was 7.00% for the County’s
Public Employees Plan and its component units. difeount rate used to measure the total pensibititya
was 7.00% for the County’'s Law Enforcement Plane Pinojection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employee and employ#rilmations will be made at the current contribatio
rate. Based on those assumptions, the pensionsdidnciary net position was projected to be avddao
make all projected future benefit payments of auri@ctive and inactive employees. Therefore, timg-o
term expected rate of return on pension plan imvests was applied to all periods of projected benef
payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the employer’s proportionate shafeéhe net pension liability to changes in the distorate:
The following presents the County’s and componeitisuproportionate shares of the net pension liiéds
calculated using the discount rate of 7.00% (Pubfigployees Plan) and 7.00% (Law Enforcement Plm),
well as what the County’s and component units’ pripnate share of the net pension liability wohédif it
were calculated using a discount rate that is tgrgage-point lower (6.00% - Public Employees Plan;
6.00% - Law Enforcement Plan) or 1-percentage-pugtter (8.00% - Public Employees Plan; 8.00% - Law
Enforcement Plan) than the current rate:

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilifgset)

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
County - Law Enforcement $ 10,638,463 % 4,024,756 $ (1,381,735)
County - Public Employees $ 23,592,764% 15,057,102 $ 7,934,016
Weed and Pest Control $ 462,846% 295,392 $ 155,651
Library System $ 4,673,939 $ 2,982,947 $ 1,571,800
Health Boar $ 3,878,626 $ 2,475,372 % 1,304,344
Landfill Board $ 304,191 $ 194,138 $ 102,297

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed imfation about the pension plan’s fiduciary net posiis
available in the separately issued WRS financipbreavailable from the Wyoming Retirement System,
6101 Yellowstone Road, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002 bttp://retirement.state.wy.us/home/index.html.

Note 13. Retirement Commitment — Medical Center

Plan Description

The Medical Center is the administrator of the MaaldHospital of Laramie County Pension Plan, ajkgn
employer defined benefit noncontributory pensicenptovering substantially all of its employees vilave
met the Plan’s eligibility requirements. All empl®ss of the Medical Center hired prior to JanuargQD4
are eligible to participate in the Plan followirigetcompletion of at least two years of service anainimum
of 1,000 hours each year. Benefits vest afterye@rs of service and a minimum of 1,000 hours par and
have reached the age of 25.

Normal retirement age is 65 with the completiorfied or more years of service. Normal retiremenga
monthly pension for life, equal to 1.25% of averagenthly compensation per year of credited servitiee
default benefit payment option is a single life @ity but there are up to four other options a teated
employee can choose for themselves. Employees riemy an early retirement if the employee has
completed five years of service and has reachedagehich pays a monthly pension for life compuited
the same manner as a normal retirement pensiotased on service and earnings to date of retirerapd
actuarially reduced to reflect the early commencdrdate. If a vested employee dies, a death bargddid

to the surviving beneficiary.

As of June 30, 2021, the following employees wenegeced by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 571

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 496

Active employees 119
1,18¢
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Funding Policy

The Plan’s funding policy provides for actuarialietermined periodic employer contributions that are
designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pagfbterwhen due. The contributions actually made are
determined by the Medical Center’s Board of Trustee

The Medical Center did not make any contributionsrdy the year ended June 30, 2021.

Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and DefeiOutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to PensionsAt June 30, 2021, the Medical Center reporteterpension asset of
$622,496 measured as of December 31, 2020, anbttdepension asset used to calculate the net @ensi
asset was determined by actuarial valuation aarafary 1, 2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Medical €emtegnized a decrease in pension expense of k664,
At June 30, 2021, the Medical Center reported dedeoutflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the followingcest

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan investments $ - $ 5,621,870

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows ofuress and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expenselasifs:

Year ended June 30:

2022 $ (1,339,110)
2023 (817,564)
2024 (2,660,600)
2025 (804,596)

$ (5,621,870)
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 20&dtuarial valuation was determined using the foltgwy
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods idetlin the measurement:

Rate of Inflation No explicit price inflatiamssumption is used in this valuation
Salary Increases 3.78% t0 5.10%
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

The actuarial assumptions noted above were baseldeoresults of actuarial experience studies wétes
corresponding to those listed above.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Empldyedality Table for Males and Females, 100%, no set
back, projected with Scale MP-2017

The long-term expected rate of return on pensiam jphvestments was determined using a buildingkbloc
method in which best-estimate ranges of expectattfureal rates (expected returns, net of pensian p
investment expense and inflation) are develope@#&oh major asset class. These estimates are czhtioin
produce the long-term expected rate of return bighting the expected future real rates of returnthmsy
target asset allocation percentage and by addipgcted inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic radés of
return were approximated using JP Morgan Asset iamant's Capital Market Assumption Group.

The target allocation per the plan documents faheaajor asset class are summarized in the follpwin
table:

Long-Term
Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed income 32% 0.71%
Domestic equity 34% 2.04%
International equity 21% 1.27%
Real estate 4% 0.40%
Alternatives 9% 0.08%
Cash 0% 0.00%
Assumed inflation 0% 2.50%

100%

Discount Rate- A single discount rate of 7.0% was used to nreathe total pension liability. The single
discount rate was based on the expected ratewhret pension plan investments of 7.0%. The ptigjec

of cash flows used to determine this single distoate assumed that plan member contributions lvell
made at the current contribution rate and that eysul contributions will be made at rates equalhe t
difference between actuarially determined contrdbutrates and the member rate. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net pmsitvas projected to be available to make all mtejé
future benefit payments of current pension plan b Therefore, the long-term expected rate afmetn
pension plan investments was applied to all periafdprojected benefit payment to determine theltota
pension liability
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Sensitivity of the Medical Center's Net Pensionbllity to Changes in the Discount Ratd he following
presents the Medical Center’s net pension liabfltyset) calculated using the discount rate of 7 &¥4vell
as what the Medical Center’s net pension liabikyuld be if it were calculated using a discoune riat is
1-percentage-point lower (6.0%) or 1 percentagetgogher (8.0%) than the current rate.

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.0%) Rate (7.0%) (8.0%)
Medical Center's
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 9,265,647 $ (622,496) $ (9,020,772)
Changes in the Net Pension Liabilit
2021

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost 417,855
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 6,140,765
Difference between Expected and Actual

Experience of the Total Pension Liability 110,401
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of

Employee Contributions (4,848,415)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,820,606
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 89,731,567
Total Pension Liability - Ending (¢ 91,552,17
Plan Fiduciary Net Positior
Contributions - Employer -
Net Investment Income 9,949,226
Benefit Payments, including Refunds of

Employee Contributions (4,848,415)
Pension Plan Administrative Expense (22,034)
Other -
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 5,078,777
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 87,095,892
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending ( 92,174,66
Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) (622,496)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of

Total Pension Liability 100.68%
Covered Employee Payroll 10,133,717
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of

Covered Employee Payroll -6.14%

59




LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net PositienDetailed information about the pension plardsifiary net position is
available in the separately issued actuarial regfdite Memorial Hospital of Laramie County Pensitian.

B. Defined Contribution Plan

The Medical Center established a defined contidmugilan for all employees hired after January 10420
Employees hired prior to that date had the optibstaying in the defined benefit plan or optingthe
defined contribution plan effective July 1, 2004n@oyees are eligible to participate in the plaronp
reaching the age of 21. The Medical Center matape® 4% of employee contributions. Total pensiamp
expense related to this plan for the year ended 30n2021 was approximately $3,931,000.

Note 14. Closure and Postclosure Care Liability & Change inAccounting Estimate - Landfill Board

State and Federal laws and regulations requircCthenty to place a final cover on its landfill siden it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maamiee and monitoring functions at the site for 8arg
after closure. Although closure and postclosure casts will be paid only near or after the date the
landfill stops accepting waste, the County reptres estimated liability for these closures and gostre
costs in the landfill based on landfill capacitedss of each balance sheet date. The currenttiogecasts
of the landfill are accounted for within the lanidéf the County using the accrual basis of accimgntThe
$820,700 reported as landfill closure and postescare liability at June 30, 2021, represents the
cumulative amount estimated to date based on tbei59.00% of the estimated capacity of the ste f
which closure costs can be estimated. The Courltyatgiognize the remaining estimated cost of clesarrd
postclosure care of $560,179 as the remaining astiincapacity is filled. The calculation of theirasted
liability has been based on what it would cost éofgrm all closure and postclosure care in 2021tu#lc
County cost may be higher due to inflation, chanigetechnology, or changes in regulations. Theantrr
year expenditures for landfill closure and postatescare reflected by the County Landfill (Boarddrev
$57,600.

Note 15. Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the County has issued IndusR&tenue Bonds to provide financial assistanceitvage-
sector entities for the acquisition and constructbdindustrial and commercial facilities deemed#oin the
public interest. The bonds are secured by the prpgmanced and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upoayeent of bonds, ownership of the acquired faediti
transfers to the private-sector entity served g ltbond issuance. Neither the County, the stateangr
political subdivision thereof is obligated in anyanmmer for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, tbads
are not reported as liabilities in the accompanyingncial statements.

Note 16. Laramie County Community Juvenile Services Joint Pwers Board

The Laramie County Community Juvenile ServicestI®owers Board (Joint Powers Board) and the County
have jointly constructed a juvenile services centethe 9.75 acres owned by the County and leas#duet
Joint Powers Board. Funding for the facility waeyided via: (1) revenue bonds issued by the JamtePs
Board in the amount of $2,355,000; (2) a State Lamdi Investment Board (SLIB) grant through the Gpun
in the amount of $865,521; and (3) a Federal gitamstugh the Wyoming Department of Education to the
County from the American Recovery and Reinvestrianitof 2009, State Stabilization Fund, Government
Services Fund (ARRA) in the amount of $4,759,000.

Construction management was under the control ®fGbunty. Bond proceeds were transferred from the
Joint Powers Board to the County, which along wlith SLIB and ARRA grant funds were used to pay the
construction costs. When construction was comp)dtedfacility was transferred to the Joint PowRosird
who holds title subject to a first mortgage andséshthe facility back to the County under a leaseimase
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agreement. The County is responsible for maintemamdilities and insurance as “additional rental”
payments under the terms of the lease.

The Joint Powers Board and the County enteredaritease and agreement” on November 23, 2010 selea
back the site and juvenile center (improvementguh June 30, 2025. The Joint Powers Board wsilgas
transfer, and convey the improvements to the Coutgn either: (1) the County has paid the applieabl
Optional Purchase Price; or (2) the County has pHidental payments set forth in the lease fordhsre
lease term and all then current additional rentadgiired by the lease. Lease payments correspotiteto
debt service requirements on the Laramie County i@omnity Juvenile Service’s revenue bonds. Additional
rentals include maintenance, utilities, insuramte,; therefore, the lease is deemed to be aétript lease.”

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the County $93,268 of principal and interest to the Joimivers
Board for rent relating to the lease purchase ®fukenile detention center.

Note 17. Economic Development Activities

During the year ended June 30, 2015, Laramie Coentgred into an agency agreement with a local
nonprofit to provide access to a commercial martufawy facility for a business recently relocated t
Laramie County. Under the terms of this agreentdgt,agent serves as a lessor/grantor to the coriaherc
entity for Laramie County, disbursing State of Wyogh Economic Development grant monies as an
incentive for this business’ relocation to Lara@ieunty. The business will reimburse the State fpoiion

of these funds received, with an option to purchhedacility for any remainder owed under the cacitt as

a single lump sum. The building was purchased bsamnée County for approximately $9,300,000. The
manufacturing business is contractually obligatedeimburse Laramie County through its agent, wiib w
further reimburse the State of Wyoming for a partaf recaptured grant funds amounting to $3,700,000
incrementally up to August 2031. As disclosed irnteN8, a leasehold contingency liability was pregigu
recorded on the statement of net position repregetiie remainder of the building value that waséo
transferred to the agent upon completion of theseof the agreement. During the year ended Jun20z,

the County transferred ownership of the facilityereby fully satisfying the leasehold contingeriapility,
with no effect on Laramie County’s net position foe year ended June 30, 2021. See Note 6 and8\ote
additional information regarding this transaction.

During the year ended June 30, 2016, Laramie Coentgred into a separate agency agreement with the
same local nonprofit to provide access to a comigeiacility for an existing business in Laramie uay.
Under the terms of the agreement, the agent seveslessor/grantor to the commercial entity oralbedf
Laramie County, disbursing State of Wyoming Ecormbévelopment grant and loan funds as an incentive
for the business’ expansion of operations in Laea@ounty. The business will reimburse the Stateafor
portion of the funds received, with an option taghase the facility for any remainder owed under th
contract as a single lump sum. The building willdvened by the agent during and after constructioni)

the state funds are repaid in full. The estimategjept cost is $3,417,719, of which $2,859,784 o
funded through the grant and the remaining $557f@88ed by the loan. $1,304,892 of the grant fusigs
required to be repaid to the State, as well asfae loan funds plus interest at an annual r&t8%. An
additional $869,928 and $434,964 of the grant fuasto be recaptured and paid to the agent and the
Cheyenne-Laramie County Economic Development Rimters Board (Joint Powers Board), respectively.

The business is contractually obligated to reiméuraramie County through its agent, who will furthe
reimburse the State of Wyoming, $364,092 of the Ipancipal and interest payments and $489,11%ef t
grant recapture payments in the initial 10-yeamtef the facility lease with the agent. The remagnioan
principal, interest and grant recapture paymenlisbeireimbursed to the State through"a1®-year renewal
term at the option of the business, or upon puelbsne building by the business at any time aféar 5 of
the initial lease term. In the event the total acproceeds received from the business are leasfuiagrant
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recapture and loan principal and interest amouwatitgrant recapture payments to the State, thetagehthe
Joint Powers Board will be reduced proportionatelgwever, the loan principal and interest are dfexct

to reduction of recapture, regardless of the amotigictual payments received from the businessarhar
County has executed a promissory note with the tafgerthe amount of the loan from the State, cagyi
interest at an annual rate of 3%. The note reqtireagent to make monthly principal and interestnmpents

to Laramie County in the amount of the total loands received by the agent, divided by 240. Monthly
payments are required to begin on the first dayhef month after Laramie County and the agent have
mutually agreed that construction of the faciligstbheen completed, and continuing each month periad

of 240 months or until paid in full. During the yeanded June 30, 2021 the local nonprofit soldfdledity
and all obligations were fully satisfied in accande with the agreement, with no effect on Laranoe@y’'s

net position for the year ended June 30, 2021.N&#e 6 and Note 8 for additional information regagd
this transaction.

Note 18. Trends and Uncertainties

The COVID-19 outbreak, which was declared a worttbvpandemic on March 11, 2020 by the World
Health Organization, has caused business disruptioa variety of industries, markets, and geographi
regions. While the disruption is currently expectedbe temporary, there continues to be considerabl
uncertainty around the duration. The extent to twhie County’s operational and financial perfornendl|

be affected is also uncertain. Therefore, while @munty expects this matter to adversely impacir the
business, results of operations, and financialtiposithe related impact cannot be reasonably estidhat
this time.

62



Required Supplementary Information



LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 202

Variance
Budget Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 24,108,000 $ 24,108,000 $ 25,479,341 $ 1,371,341

Licenses and permits 116,000 116,000 92,395 (23,605)

Intergovernmental revenues 11,343,877 11,451,230 17,374,091 5,922,861

Charges for services 5,267,000 5,977,000 6,195,317 218,317

Investment earnings 256,000 256,000 74,422 (181,578)

Miscellaneous 349,000 724,000 1,755,396 1,031,396
Total revenue: 41,439,877 42,632,230 50,970,962 8,338,732

Expenditures
Current:
General government 15,988,391 16,451,331 14,228,619 2,222,712
Public safety 25,836,513 26,626,551 20,844,507 5,782,044
Health, welfare, and recreation 124,000 124,000 109,699 14,301
Conservation and development 273,984 273,984 225,257 48,727

Debt service:

Interest 53,185 53,185 28,306 24,879
Principal 163,440 163,440 165,169 (1,729)

Capital outlay:

Capital outlay 3,295,700 3,306,977 396,627 2,910,350
Total expenditures 45,735,213 46,999,468 35,998,184 11,001,284
Excess (deficiency) of revenu

over expenditure: (4,295,336) (4,367,238) 14,972,778 19,340,016
Other financing sources (uses)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 21,065 21,065

Proceeds from debt issuance - 11,277 11,277 -

Transfers In 67,550 67,550 - (67,550)

Transfers out (3,105,027) (3,184,067) (1,901,341) 1,282,726
Total other financing sources (use: (3,037,477) (3,105,240) (1,868,999) 1,236,241

Net change in fund balance $ (7,332,813 $ (7,472,478 $ 13,103,77 $ 20,576,25

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - OPTIONAL 1% T AX FUND
Year Ended June 30, 202

Variance
Budget Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 6,300,000 $ 6,300,000 $ 9,548,090 $ 3,248,090
Total revenue 6,300,000 6,300,000 9,548,090 3,248,090
Expenditures
Current:
General government 235,636 235,636 199,682 35,954
Public safety 657,778 657,778 289,409 368,369
Health, welfare and recreation 1,130,538 1,130,538 1,080,095 50,443
Conservation and development 147,609 147,609 143,102 4,507
Capital outlay 1,892,707 1,892,707 212,215 1,680,492
Total expenditures 4,064,268 4,064,268 1,924,503 2,139,765
Excess of revenues over expenditur 2,235,732 2,235,732 7,623,587 5,387,855
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out (4,579,183) (4,579,183) (4,504,777) 74,406
Total other financing sources (use: (4,579,183) (4,579,183) (4,504,777) 74,406
Net change in fund balance $ (2,343,451 $ (2,343,451 $ 3,118,811 $ 5,462,26.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - PUBLIC WORKS FUND
Year Ended June 30, 202

Variance
Budget Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues $ 2,150,000 2,150,000 $ 2,323,268 $ 173,268
Charges for services 55,000 55,000 55,619 619
Miscellaneous revenues 15,000 15,000 7,984 (7,016)
Total revenue: 2,220,000 2,220,000 2,386,871 166,871
Expenditures
Current:
Public works 6,598,051 6,598,051 6,120,858 477,193
Capital outlay 2,226,000 2,226,000 860,773 1,365,227
Total expenditures 8,824,051 8,824,051 6,981,631 1,842,420
Excess (deficiency) of revenu
over expenditure: (6,604,051) (6,604,051) (4,594,760) 2,009,291
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,000 2,000 11,262 9,262
Transfers In 4,562,777 4,562,777 4,462,777 (100,000)
Total other financing sources (use: 4,564,777 4,564,777 4,474,039 (90,738)
Net change in fund balance $ (2,039,274 $ (2,039,274 $ (120,721 $ 1,918,55:

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - ARPA FUND
Year Ended June 30, 202

Variance
Budget Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues $ - $ 9,663,355% 1,210 $ (9,662,145)
Total revenue: - 9,663,355 1,210 (9,662,145)
Expenditures
Current:
General Government - - 1,210 (1,210)
Capital outlay - 9,663,355 - 9,663,355
Total expenditures - 9,663,355 1,210 9,662,145

Excess (deficiency) of revenu
over expenditure: - - - -

Net change in fund balance $ - $ - $ - $ -

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PLAN
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Law Enforcement Pension Pla

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 202

County's County's proportional Plan fiduciary net
County's proportionate share of the net position as a
proportion of the share of the net pension liability as a percentage of the
net pension pension liability County's covered percentage of its total pension
liability (asset) (asset) payroll covered payroll liability
201< 4.801862754¢ $ 876,78 $ 7,273,32 12.05% 87.49%
201t 4.804043025¢ $ 141544 $ 7,173,93 19.73¥% 94.76%
201€ 4.825671049¢ $ 3,625,04 $ 7,585,54 47.79Y 96.53%
2017 5.253898600¢ $ 3,966,26' $ 8,221,12: 48.24% 88.11%
201¢ 5.538702600¢ $ 4,765,74" $ 8,567,24. 55.63% 87.99%
201¢ 5.648514000¢ $ 13,673,48 $ 8,836,55: 154.74Y 71.22%
202C 5.634700000¢ $ 4,857,03' $ 9,037,87. 53.74Y% 89.05%
2021 5.908141000¢ $ 4,024,75" $ 10,021,28 40.16% 91.82%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterthined as of the calendar year-end that occuwihin
the fiscal year. This schedule is to be built pexdjwvely until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PLAN CONTR IBUTIONS
Law Enforcement Pension Pla
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021

Contributions in

Statutorily relation to the Contributions as

required statutorily require: Contribution percentage of

contribution contribution  deficiency (excess) Covered payroll covered payroll
2012 $ 619,507 $ 619,507 $ - $ 7,203,570 8.60%
201t $ 614,214 $ 614,214 $ - $ 7,142,023 8.60%
201¢ $ 700,163 $ 700,163 $ - $ 8,141,430 8.60%
2017 $ 709,872 $ 709,872 $ - $ 8,254,326 8.60%
201¢ $ 766,467 $ 766,467 $ - $ 8,842,590 8.67%
201¢ $ 761,107 $ 761,107 $ - $ 8,827,545 8.62%
202C $ 835,825 $ 835,825 $ - $ 9,569,337 8.73%
2021 $ 821,402 $ 821,402 $ - $ 9,343,733 8.79%

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of da

See Notes to Required Supplementary Informe
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SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY'S PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PLAN
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021*

County's

County's
proportionate

proportion of the share of the net

County's proportional Plan fiduciary net

share of the net

position as a

pension liability as a percentage of the

net pension pension liability County's covered percentage of its total pension
liability (asset) (asset) payroll covered payroll liability
2014  0.498224365%% 7,575,005 9,441,110 80.23% 81.10%
2015 0.558142692%% 9,849,508 9,699,013 101.55% 79.08%
2016  0.581358446% 13,541,868 10,372,692 130.55% 73.40%
2017  0.606043400% 14,651,106 10,839,844 135.16% 73.42%
2018 0.627834900% 14,310,49% 11,032,265 129.71% 76.35%
2019 0.649719600% 19,785,853 11,089,580 178.42% 69.17%
2020 0.658014100% 15,462,846 11,542,086 133.97% 76.83%
2021  0.692803000%h 15,057,103 12,603,880 119.46% 79.24%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterchined as of the calendar year-end that occuwihin
the fiscal year. This schedule is to be built pexgjvely until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY'S PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PLAN CONTR IBUTIONS

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021**

Statutorily
required

contribution

Contributions in

relation to the
statutorily require:
contribution

Contribution
deficiency (excess)

Contributions as

Covered payroll

percentage of
covered payroll

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

AR R AR AR R -

675,826
759,448
893,794
917,930
937,172
996,292
1,078,024
1,114,627

R R AR AR A -

675,826
759,448
893,794
917,930
937,172
996,292
1,078,024
1,114,627

I R T A R

B HHBHHH P

9,491,938

9,966,509
10,678,542
10,966,906
11,156,886
11,402,714
11,964,453
12,151,756

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of data.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF THE WEED AND PEST CONTROL'S PROPORTIONA TE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021*

The Weed and Pest

The Weed and Control's
The Weed and  Pest Control's proportionate share oPlan fiduciary net
Pest Control's proportionate the net pension position as a
proportion of the share of the net The Weed and Pest liability as a percentage of the
net pension pension liability Control's covered percentage of its total pension
liability (asset) (asset) payroll covered payroll liability
2014  0.009376155%% 142,555 160,716 88.70% 81.10%
2015 0.008539094% 150,68% 148,406 101.54% 79.08%
2016  0.009221489% 214,801% 164,105 130.89% 73.40%
2017  0.011728800%b 283,544 209,795 135.15% 73.42%
2018 0.012547700%% 286,005 220,488 129.71% 76.35%
2019 0.011986300%b 365,018 226,942 160.84% 69.17%
2020 0.013040700% 306,447 242,531 126.35% 76.83%
2021  0.013591500% 295,39% 244,227 102.95% 79.24%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterdhined as of the calendar year-end that occuwihin
the fiscal year. This schedule is to be built pextiwely until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE WEED AND PEST CONTROL'S CONTRIBUTIO NS
Public Employee Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021**

Contributions in

Statutorily relation to the Contributions as

required statutorily require: Contribution percentage of
contribution contribution  deficiency (excess) Covered payroll covered payroll

2014 $ 10,673 $ 10,673 $ - $ 149,902 7.12%
2015 $ 11,104 $ 11,104 $ - $ 145,722 7.62%
2016 $ 16,449 $ 16,449 $ - $ 196,523 8.37%
2017 $ 17,920 $ 17,920 $ - $ 214,098 8.37%
2018 $ 17,358 $ 17,358 $ - $ 207,380 8.37%
2019 $ 19,467 $ 19,467 $ - $ 227,950 8.54%
2020 $ 21,513 $ 21,513 $ - $ 242,531 8.87%
2021 $ 22542 $ 22,542 $ - $ 247,167 9.12%

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of data.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF THE LIBRARY SYSTEM'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021*

Library System's

Library System's proportionate share oPlan fiduciary net
Library System's proportionate the net pension position as a
proportion of the share of the net liability as a percentage of the
net pension pension liability  Library Sytem's percentage of its total pension
liability (asset) (asset) covered payroll covered payroll liability
2014  0.121707727%%$ 1,850,44% 2,085,997 88.71% 81.10%
2015 0.116206948%%b 2,050,695 2,020,279 101.51% 79.08%
2016  0.115209972%b 2,683,641 2,057,596 130.43% 73.40%
2017 0.121069100%b 2,926,846 2,165,472 135.16% 73.42%
2018 0.125090900%b 2,851,248 2,133,082 133.67% 76.35%
2019 0.126049600%%5 3,838,575 2,294,818 167.27% 69.17%
2020 0.135037600%%b 3,173,284 2,491,992 127.34% 76.83%
2021  0.137250500% 2,982,948 2,466,275 120.95% 79.24%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterthined as of the calendar year-end that occuwihin

the fiscal year. This schedule is to be built pextjvely until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE LIBRARY SYSTEM'S CONTRIBUTIONS
Public Employee Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021**

Contributions in

Statutorily relation to the Contributions as

required statutorily require! Contribution percentage of
contribution contribution deficiency (excess) Covered payroll covered payroll

2014 $ 143,430 $ 143,430 $ - % 2,014,466 7.12%
2015 $ 156,829 $ 156,829 $ - % 2,058,123 7.62%
2016 $ 173,114 $ 173,114 $ - % 2,068,268 8.37%
2017 $ 186,974 $ 186,974 $ - $ 2,233,859 8.37%
2018 $ 179,088 $ 179,088 $ - $ 2,139,643 8.37%
2019 $ 196,879 $ 196,879 $ - $ 2,283,984 8.62%
2020 $ 221,040 $ 221,040 $ - $ 2,491,992 8.87%
2021 $ 221,939 $ 221,939 $ - % 2,433,536 9.12%

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of data.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF THE HEALTH BOARD'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021*

Health Board's

Health Board's

proportionate

proportion of the share of the net

Health Board's

proportionate share oPlan fiduciary net

the net pension
liability as a

position as a
percentage of the

net pension pension liability Health Board's percentage of its total pension
liability (asset) (asset) covered payroll covered payroll liability
2014  0.099459785%%b 1,512,18% 1,709,860 88.44% 81.10%
2015 0.093943157%%$ 1,657,808 1,632,584 101.55% 79.08%
2016  0.093902533%5b 2,187,318 1,675,727 130.53% 73.40%
2017  0.090936200%%5 2,198,383 1,626,511 135.16% 73.42%
2018 0.089133400%5 2,031,654 1,566,244 129.72% 76.35%
2019 0.107792900%% 3,282,605 1,873,331 175.23% 69.17%
2020 0.124811000%% 2,932,9666 2,177,356 134.70% 76.83%
2021  0.113896100%%5 2,475,373 2,005,522 123.43% 79.24%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterthined as of the calendar year-end that occuwéhin

the fiscal year. This schedule is to be built pexdjvely until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE HEALTH BOARD'S CONTRIBUTIONS

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021**

Statutorily
required
contribution

Contributions in

relation to the

statutorily require:

contribution

Contribution

deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as
percentage of
covered payroll

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

LR A o

115,614
125,658
139,188
132,947
133,457
187,368
193,131
182,904

LR A A R R

115,614
125,658
139,188
132,947
133,457
187,368
193,131
182,904

R A A R A

LR A o B

1,623,792
1,649,055
1,662,939
1,588,377
1,594,470
2,183,807
2,177,356
2,005,522

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of data.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF THE LANDFILL BOARD'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employee Pension Plan

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021*

Landfill Board's

Landfill Board's proportionate share oflan fiduciary net
Landfill Board's  proportionate the net pension position as a
proportion of the share of the net liability as a percentage of the
net pension pension liability  Landfill Board's percentage of its total pension
liability (asset) (asset) covered payroll covered payroll liability
2014 0.008321122%% 126,514% 142,416 88.83% 81.10%
2015 0.009028553%H 159,3265 156,937 101.52% 79.08%
2016 0.008866731%H 206,537 158,215 130.54% 73.40%
2017  0.009053400%H 218,866 161,933 135.16% 73.42%
2018 0.009311200%H 212,234 163,598 129.73% 76.35%
2019 0.010296500%H 313,558 179,141 175.03% 69.17%
2020 0.008425000%H 197,981% 148,668 133.17% 76.83%
2021 0.008932600%H 194,1385 180,913 107.31% 79.24%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterthined as of the calendar year-end that occuwghin

the fiscal year. This schedule is to be built peagjwely until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE LANDFILL BOARD'S CONTRIBUTIONS
Public Employee Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 - 2021**

Contributions in

Statutorily relation to the Contributions as

required statutorily require: Contribution

percentage of

contribution contribution deficiency (excess) Covered payroll covered payroll
2014 $ 10,883 $ 10,883 $ - % 152,851 7.12%
2015 $ 11,910 $ 11,910 $ - % 156,299 7.62%
2016 $ 13,445 $ 13,445 $ - % 160,633 8.37%
2017 $ 13,513 $ 13,513 $ - % 161,446 8.37%
2018 $ 14,116 $ 14,116 $ - % 168,649 8.37%
2019 $ 15,463 $ 15,463 $ - % 179,141 8.63%
2020 $ 13,187 $ 13,187 $ - % 148,668 8.87%
2021 $ 16,499 $ 16,499 $ - % 180,913 9.12%

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of data.
See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
SCHEDULE OF THE MEDICAL CENTER'S NET PENSION
LIABILITY
Medical Center Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 - 2021*

Net Pension
Liability as
Plan Net Positio a % of
Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension as a % of Total Covered Covered
Liability Position Liability Pension Liability Payroll Payroll
2015 $ 79,456,3723% 77,375,452 % 2,080,920 97.38%% 15,399,462 13.51%
2016 $ 80,812,014 3% 76,133,998 $ 4,678,016 94.21%%$ 14,280,061 32.76%
2017 $ 81,687,795% 79,841,713 % 1,846,082 97.74%%$ 12,721,044 14.51%
2018 $ 85,136,1853% 83,809,267 $ 1,326,918 98.44%%$ 11,856,908 11.19%
2019 $ 87,333,4433% 76,017,970% 11,315,473 87.30%3$ 10,992,280 102.94%
2020 $ 89,731,567 $ 87,095,892 $ 2,635,675 97.06%% 10,403,138 25.34%
2021 $ 91,552,173 % 92,174,669 $ (622,496) 100.68%% 10,133,717 -6.14%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year weterthined as of December 31. This schedule is it
prospectively until it contains ten years of data.

SCHEDULE OF THE MEDICAL CENTER'S CONTRIBUTIONS
Medical Center Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 - 2021**

Contributions

Actuarially Contribution as a percentage
Determined Actual deficiency of covered
Contribution ~ Contribution (excess) Covered payroll  payroll

2015 $ 1,173,902 $ 2,925,000 $ (1,751,098) $ 15,399,462 18.99%
2016 $ 1,098,239 $ 4,892,632 $ (3,794,393) $ 14,280,061 34.26%
2017 $ 255,564 $ 1,838,816 $ (1,583,252) $ 12,721,044 14.45%
2018 $ 1,599,490 $ - 8 1,599,490 $ 11,856,908 0.00%
2019 $ 1,978,350 $ - 8 1,978,350 $ 10,992,280 0.00%
2020 $ 2,614,441 $ 1,200,000 $ 1,414,441 $ 10,403,138 11.53%
2021 $ 1,045562 $ - % 1,045,562 $ 10,133,717 0.00%

** This schedule is to be built prospectively uittitontains ten years of data.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1. Budgetary Information

The schedules of revenues, expenditures and changesd balance — budget and actual — general,fund
optional 1% tax fund, public works fund , and ARRAd presents comparisons of the legally adoptettbis
with actual data. The County prepares its budget ocash basis, and the revenues and expendit@ssnped in
the aforementioned statements are on the moditiedial basis. Any differences in revenues and edipaes

as a result of the difference in accounting baskscansidered immaterial. Appropriations lapseistal year
end. All budget amendments are approved by the @o0ommissioners and are presented within the final
budget figures.

The County follows these procedures in establisttiegoudgetary data reflected in the financialestents.

Wyoming State Statutes require the preparationnofimnual budget, which provides documentation #flat
sources and uses of County resources are progariyed, budgeted, and approved. The budget, upmptiad,
is the legal document which places restrictions landations on the purposes and amounts for wichinty
monies may be expended.

The budget is adopted according to the followirgesitile:

1. On or before May 15, the Budget Officer shall prepatentative budget for each fund and file theget
with the governing body.

2. A summary of the tentative budget shall be enterexithe minutes and the governing body shall @bl
the summary at least one week before the publidrieto adopt the budget.

3. The public hearing is held on or before the thirdriday in July.

4. On the day of or the day following the public hegrithe County Commissioners, by resolution, make
the necessary appropriations and adopt the budhéth subject to future amendment, shall be inaffe
for the next fiscal year.

Note 2. Retirement Commitment — Wyoming Retirement System

Changes in benefit terms: There were no changesriefit terms between the December 31, 2019 measute
date and the December 31, 2020 measurement date.

Changes in assumptions: The current assumptioligedtiwvere approved by the Wyoming Retirement Syste
Board effective August 23, 2017. There were no gharto the assumptions between the December 39, 201
measurement date and the December 31, 2020 measrdate.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 3. Retirement Commitment — Medical Center
Valuation Date: January 1

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates ealculated as of January 1
each year for implementation the following fiscehy.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine ContribatRates:

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method: Level Dollar, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period: 30 Years beginnimg@021

Asset Valuation Method: Market Value

Inflation: No explicit price inflation assumpti is used.

Investment Rate of Return: 7.00%

Salary Increases: 3.78% to 5.10%

Mortality: RP 2014 Employee Mortality Table for Ma and Females, 100%, no

set back, projected with Scale MP- 2017

Expenses: Normal Cost loading is based on theageeof the last three year's
noninvestment expenses.

Indexing: For members who retired before 1989 absmimed increase in benefits
is 3.00% per year.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2021

Specia Revenue Funds

Other County Miscellaneous Enhanced Homeland Emergency  Events
Operating Grants 911 System  Security Management  Center
ASSETS Funds Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund
Cash and cash equivalents $ 73424 3 - 8 - - 3 - $ 54265
Equity in pooled cash 4,788,623 93,718 249,908 98
Investments 858,229 - - -
Accounts receivable - 245,256 -
Property tax receivable - - 16,673
Due from other funds 3,663 - - 220,274
Duefrom other governments - 96,451 23,084 26,076 -
Prepaid assets 17,889 - - - - -
Total assets $ 5741828 $ 96451 $ 338974 $23084 $ 275984 $ 291,310
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 68671 $ 70991 $ 1598 $216%4 $ 1704 $ 43360
Accrued payroll ligbilities 47,950 - 97,162 - 9,027 36,824
Dueto other funds 2,532 - 97,386 - 50,000 -
Total liabilities 119,153 70,991 196,146 21,694 60,731 80,184
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable Revenue 16,631
Total liabilitiesand deferred inflow
of resources 119,153 70,991 196,146 21,694 60,731 96,815
Fund balances
Nonspendable 17,889 - - -
Restricted 148,734 25,460 142,828 1,390 -
Committed 144,543 - - - 215,253 -
Assigned 5,311,509 - - - - 194,495
Total fund balances 5,622,675 25,460 142,828 1,390 215253 194,495
Total liabilities, deferred inflow of
resour ces and fund balances $ 5741828 $ 96451 $ 338974 $23084 $ 275984 $ 291,310
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Special Revenue Funds

Lottery GIS Law Special County Business SPOT Total Nommmaj
Tax COOP  Enforcement Courts Roads Ready Grants O&M SpRelatnue
Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ - $ - $ - - - - $ - $ 127,689

268,271 27,483 1,083,654 1,506 2,340,365 29,214 - 8,882,840

- - - - - - 6,878,355 7,736,584

- - - - - - - 245,256

- 16,673

- - 2,787 - - - - 226,724

46,125 - - - 178,755 5,000 - 375,491

- - - - - - - 17,889
$314,39¢ $ 27,48: $ 1,086,44 $ 150¢ $2,519,121 $ 3421 $6,878,35 $ 17,629,14

$ - $ - $ 21,702 $ 16,936 $ - 5,000 $ - % 251,656

- - - 10,289 - - - 201,252

- - - - - - - 149,918

- - 21,702 27,225 - 5,000 - 602,826

- - - - - - - 16,631

- - 21,702 27,225 - 5,000 - 619,457

- - - - - - - 17,889

- 27,483 - (25,719) 2,519,120 29,214 6,878,355 9,746,865

- - 1,064,739 - - - - 1,424,535

314,396 - - - - - - 5,820,400

314,396 27,483 1,064,739 (25,719) 2,519,120 29,214 6,878,355 17,009,689

$314,396 $ 27,483 $ 1,086,441 $ 1506 $ 2,519,120 % 34,214 $ 6,878,355% 17,629,146
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2021
Specia Revenue Funds

Other County Miscellaneous Enhanced  Homeland — Emergency Events
Operating Grants  911System  Security Management  Center

Fund balances (deficit) - end of year

Funds Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues

Taxes $ - $ - $1018181 $ - $ - 8 42

Licenses and permits 1,952,593 - - - - -

Intergovernmental revenues 1,854,066 4,985,658 420834 162,293 224,104 -

Charges for services 239,237 - 243,000 - - 197,969

Investment earnings 868 - - - -

Miscellaneous revenues 106,827 - - 12,500 - 100,490
Total revenues 4153591 4985658 1682015 174,793 224,104 293,501

Expenditures
Current;
Genera government 1,728,118 19,611 - - -
Public safety - 10386 2,071,411 105812 282,819
Public works - - - - - -
Health, welfare, and recreation 1,055,384 3,944,925 - - - 1,048,531
Conservation and devel opment 551,379 - -

Debt service:

Interest - - - - - 1,884
Principa - - - - - 18,748

Capital outlay:

Capital outlay 63,802 90,398 - 127,753 - 170,429
Total expenditures 3398683 4065320 2071411 233565 282819 1,239,592
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 754,908 920,338  (389,396) (58,772 (58,715)  (941,091)
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfersin 133,600 - 465,229 55,022 95,640 1,170,474

Transfers out (45,600) - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 88,000 - 465,229 55,022 95640 1,170,474
Net changesin fund balances 842,908 920,338 75,833 (3,750) 36,925 229,383

Fund balances - beginning of year 4,779,767 (894,878) 66,995 5,140 178,328 (34,888)

$ 5622675 $ 25460 $ 142828 $ 1390 $ 215253 $ 194495
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Special Revenue Funds

Lottery GIS Law Special County Business SPOT  Total Nommaj
Tax COOP  Enforcement  Courts Roads ReadyGrants O&M  SpRemnue
Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ - 3 $ - $ - - - 1,018,223
- - - - - - - 1,952,593
198,284 93,747 980 404,497 1,318,711 446,078 - 10,109,252
- 345591 21,719 - - 1,047,516
- - - 748 - 3,058 4,674
- 5,000 - - 100,000 16,230 - 341,047
198,284 98,747 346,571 426,216 1,419,459 462,308 3,058 14,473,305
94,640 - 528,917 - - - 2,371,286
273,524 - - - 198,423 2,942,375
- - 65 - - 65
- 65,904 - 6,114,744
- 380,174 - 931,553
- - - 1,884
- - - 18,748
31,453 - 2,080,981 37,997 2,602,813
94,640 304,977 528,917 2,081,046 446,078 236,420 14,983,468
198,284 4,107 41,594 (102,701) (661,587) 16,230 (233,362) (510,163)
23,376 - 45,600 - - 1,988,941
- - - - - - (45,600)
- 23,376 - 45,600 - - 1,943,341
198,284 27,483 41,594  (57,101) (661,587) 16,230 (233,362) 1,433,178
116,112 - 1,023,145 31,382 3,180,707 12,984 7,111,717 15,576,511

$314,396 $ 27,483 $ 1,064,739 $ (25,719)$ 2,519,120 $ 29,214 $ 6,878,355 $ 17,009,689
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 202

Weed and County
Pest Control Library
Asset: District Systen
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,206,703 $ 480,223
Investments - 6,534,891
Net investment in capital lease - -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables) 1,088 62,190
Accrued interest receivable - 1,255
Due from other governments - 1,550
Inventory 336,095 12,053
Prepaid expenses - -
Restricted assets:
Restricted by donor - -
Debt agreement - -
Other - -
Capital assets, not being depreciated 53,870 2,916,089

Capital assets being depreciated, net
Total asset:
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related outflows
Total assets and deferred outflow of resourc
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Due to Cheyenne Regional Medical Center
Accrued payroll liabilities
Construction payables
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Third-party payor settlements, estimated
Landfill closure and post closure liability
Net pension liability
Deferred Revenue
Long-term debt due within one year
Long-term debt due in more than one year
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related inflows
Deferred refunding costs
Total deferred inflow of resource:
Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resource:
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Bond indenture agreement, expendable
Donor specified purposes, expendable
Endowments, nonexpendable
Permanently restricted
Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position
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2,565,37813,919,120

12,293,114 23,927,371

43,584 349,408

$ 12,336,69 $ 24,276,77
$ - $ 47,917
295,392 2,982,947

1,000 -
36,608 211,144
333,000 3,242,008
70,976 679,918
70,976 679,918

$ 403,97¢ $ 3,921,92
$ 2,619,248 $ 16,835,209
- 553,953
- 652,063
9,313,474 2,313,628

$ 11,932,72 $ 20,354,85




Business-Type

Governmental Activities Activity
City of Community Cheyenne
Cheyenne- County Juvenile Services Regional
Laramie County Landfill Joint Powers Medical
Health Boar Boarc Boarc Cente Total

$ 3,546,681 $ 179,999 $ 206,191 $ 80,966,263% 94,586,060
- 3,711,256 - 356,679,965 366,926,112
- - 710,000 - 710,000
(44,652) 154,112 25,166 51,508,236 51,836,120
- - - - 1,255
345,091 - - - 346,641
53,225 - - 8,388,473 8,789,846
- - - 4,959,166 4,959,166
- - - 7,962,854 7,962,854
- - - 18,391,137 18,391,137
- - - 12,948,362 12,948,362
29,925 41,853 - 15,119,892 18,161,629
356,997 2,030,090 - 178,812,449 197,684,034
4,287,267 6,117,310 941,357 735,736,797 783,303,216
688,295 30,938 - - 1,112,225

$ 497556, $ 6,148,24 $ 941,35° $ 735,736,79 $ 784,415,44
$ 162,223 $ 8,774 $ 17,509 $ 9,731,895% 9,968,318
23,814 - 202,234 - 226,048
- - - 1,048,246 1,048,246
- - - 20,260,076 20,260,076
- - - 760,602 760,602
- - - 446,883 446,883
- - - 43,749,035 43,749,035
- - - 1,721,639 1,721,639
- 820,700 - - 820,700
2,475,372 194,138 - - 5,947,849
- - - 84,042 84,042
40,000 126,610 170,000 6,994,916 7,332,526
143,209 46,319 534,786 118,868,652 119,840,718
2,844,618 1,196,541 924,529 203,665,986 212,206,682
792,787 67,500 - 5,621,870 7,233,051
- - - 2,062,671 2,062,671
792,787 67,500 - 7,684,541 9,295,722

$ 3,637,40! $ 1,264,04 $ 924,52¢ $ 211,350,52 $ 221,502,40
$ 386,922 $ 1,902,452 % - $ 66,006,102% 87,749,933
- - - 18,391,137 18,391,137
- - - 8,901,142 8,901,142
- - - 11,037,355 11,037,355
- - - - 553,953
- - - - 652,063
951,235 2,981,755 16,828 420,050,534 435,627,454

$ 1,338,155 $ 4,884,200 $ 16,82¢ $ 524,386,27 $ 562,913,03
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
Year Ended June 30, 202
Program Revenu

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expense Service Contribution: Contribution:
Component Units
Governmental Activities:
Weed and Pest Control District $ 1,949,071 389,168 $ - $ -
County Library System 6,181,694 - 444,184 6,891
City of Cheyenne - Laramie
County Health Board 4,755,608 1,945,894 4,061,808 -
County Landfill Board 1,011,508 835,011 - -
Community Juvenile Services Joint
Powers Board 170,873 - 105,210 -
Business-Type Activity:
Cheyenne Regional Medical Center 371,733,418390,815,073 2,049,443 -
$385,802,17 $ 393,985,114 $6,660,64! $ 6,891

General revenues
Property taxes
Sales and other taxes
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Provider relief funds
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenues
Total general revenues

Change in net position
Net position (deficit) - beginning of year

Net position - end of ye
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Pc

City of Community
Weed and Cheyenne- Juvenile Cheyenne
Pest County Laramie County Services Regional
Control Library County Landfill Joint Powers Medical
District Systen Health Boar Boarc Boarc Cente Totals
$ (1,559,903) % - $ - - 8 - - $ (1,559,903)
- (5,730,619) - - - - (5,730,619)
- - 1,252,094 - - - 1,252,094
- - - (176,497) - - (176,497)
- - - - (65,663) - (65,663)
- - - - - 21,131,098 21,131,098
(1,559,903 (5,730,618 1,252,009 (176,497 (65,663 21,131,09 14,850,51
1,975,157 4,272,810 - 1,382,953 - - 7,630,920
- 1,355,147 - 332,752 - - 1,687,899
43,790 - - - - 18,158 61,948
- - - - - 14,783,109 14,783,109
28,973 338,445 398 12,605 35,391 41,790,546 42,206,358
5,551 352,750 - - 28,268 2,786,631 3,173,200
2,053,471 6,319,152 398 1,728,310 63,659 59,378,444 69,543,434
493,568 588,533 1,252,492 1,551,813 (2,004) 80,509,542 84,393,944
11,439,154 19,766,320 85,665 3,332,394 18,832 443,876,728 478,519,093
$ 11,932,72 $20,35485 $ 1,338,15 $ 4,884,200 $ 16,82¢ $524,386,27 $562,913,03
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
LARAMIE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM

June 30, 202

Component Unit

Laramie Laramie
County County
Library Library
ASSETS System Foundation, Inc.  Eliminations Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 159,280 $ 320,943 $ - 3 480,223
Investments 3,847,171 2,687,720 - 6,534,891
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables) ,083 9,100 - 62,190
Accrued interest receivable 1,255 - - 1,255
Due from other governments 1,550 - - 1,550
Inventory 12,053 - - 12,053
Capital assets, not being depreciated 2,916,089 - - 2,916,089
Capital assets being depreciated, net 13,919,120 - - 13,919,120
Investments held by others 1,657,237 - (1,657,237) -
Total asset: 22,566,845 3,017,763  (1,657,237) 23,927,371
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related outflows 349,408 - - 349,408

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Net pension liability
Long-term debt due within one year
Long-term debt due in more than one year
Investments held for others
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related inflows
Total deferred inflow of resource:

Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Permanently restricted
Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 22,916,253 $

3,017,763 $ (1,657,237)$ 24,276,779

$ 46,776 $ 1,141 $ - $ 47017
2,982,947 - - 2,982,947
211,144 - - 211,144

- 1,657,237 (1,657,237) -
3,240,867 1,658,378 (1,657,237) 3,242,008
679,918 - - 679,918
679,918 - - 679,918

$ 3,920,785 $

1,658,378 $ (1,657,237)$% 3,921,926

$ 16,835,209 - 3 - $ 16,835,209
- 553,953 - 553,953

- 652,063 - 652,063

2,160,259 153,369 - 2,313,628

$ 18,995,468 $ 1,359,385 $ - $ 20,354,853
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
LARAMIE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
Year Ended June 30, 20z
Component Unit

Laramie Laramie
County County
Library Library
System Foundation, Inc.  Eliminations Total
Revenues
Property taxes $ 4,272,810 $ - $ - $ 4,272,810
Sales and other taxes 1,355,147 - - 1,355,147
Grants and contributions 103,558 347,517 - 451,075
Unrestricted investment earnings 11,035 327,410 - 338,445
Miscellaneous revenues 603,978 1,190 (252,418) 352,750
Total revenues 6,346,528 676,117 (252,418) 6,770,227
Expenses
Health, welfare and recreation 6,063,634 370,478 (252,418) 6,181,694
Total expenditures 6,063,634 370,478 (252,418) 6,181,694
Change in net positiol 282,894 305,639 - 588,533
Net Position - beginning of year 18,712,574 1,053,746 - 19,766,320
Net position - end of year $ 18,995,468 1,359,385 $ - $ 20,354,853

85



LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
CHEYENNE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
June 30, 202

Component Unit

Cheyenne Cheyenne
Regional Regional
Medical Medical Center
ASSETS Center Foundation Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 79,784,713 $ 1,181,550 $ 80,966,263
Investments 334,614,120 22,065,845 356,679,965
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectables) , 451,498 96,738 51,508,236
Inventory 8,388,473 - 8,388,473
Prepaid expenses 4,959,166 - 4,959,166
Restricted assets:
Restricted by donor 7,962,854 - 7,962,854
Debt agreement 18,391,137 18,391,137
Other 12,910,054 38,308 12,948,362
Capital assets, not being depreciated 15,119,892 - 15,119,892
Capital assets being depreciated, net 178,809,843 2,606 178,812,449
Total asset: 712,351,750 23,385,047 735,736,797

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related outflows
Total assets and deferred outflow of resourci
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to Cheyenne Regional Medical Center
Accrued payroll liabilities
Construction payables
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Third-party payor settlements, estimated
Deferred Revenue
Long-term debt due within one year
Long-term debt due in more than one year
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related inflows
Deferred refunding cost
Total deferred inflow of resource:
Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resource:
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Bond indenture agreement, expendable
Donor specified purposes, expendable
Endowments, nonexpendable
Unrestricted
Total net position
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$ 712,351,75 $

23,385,04 $ 735,736,79

$ 9,287,640 $ 444,255 $ 9,731,895
- 1,048,246 1,048,246
20,260,076 - 20,260,076
760,602 - 760,602
446,883 - 446,883
43,749,035 - 43,749,035
1,721,639 - 1,721,639
84,042 - 84,042
6,994,916 - 6,994,916
118,868,652 - 118,868,652
202,173,485 1,492,501 203,665,986
5,621,870 - 5,621,870
2,062,671 - 2,062,671
7,684,541 7,684,541

$ 209,858,02 $

1,492,50. $ 211,350,52

$ 66,003,496

18,391,137
1,044,917
6,917,937
410,136,237

2,606 $ 66,006,102

- 18,391,137
7,856,225 8,901,142
4,119,418 11,037,355
9,914,297 420,050,534

$ 502,493,72 $

21,892,54 $ 524,386,27




LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
CHEYENNE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
Year Ended June 30, 202

Component Unit

Cheyenne Cheyenne
Regional Regional
Medical Medical Center
Center Foundation Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 376,709,278 - 3 376,709,279
Other revenue 13,585,275 520,519 14,105,794
Gifts and contributions - 2,049,443 2,049,443
Total revenues 390,294,554 2,569,962 392,864,516
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 202,759,599 202,759,599
Purchased services 47,754,918 - 47,754,918
Supplies and other expense 87,388,989 - 87,388,989
Depreciation and amortization 27,469,530 - 27,469,530
Cheyenne Regional Medical Center
Foundation programs - 2,361,268 2,361,268
Management, general and fundraising - 270,895 270,895
Total operating expense 365,373,036 2,632,163 368,005,199
Operating income (loss 24,921,518 (62,201) 24,859,317
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Contributions from Foundation 2,786,631 - 2,786,631
Investment gains and losses 39,657,075 2,133,471 41,790,546
Gain/(Loss) on sale of capital assets 18,158 - 18,158
Provider relief funds 14,783,109 14,783,109
Interest expense (3,728,219) - (3,728,219)
Total nonoperating revenues (expense 53,516,754 2,133,471 55,650,225
Change in net positiol 78,438,272 2,071,270 80,509,542
Net position - beginning of year 424,055,452 19,821,276 443,876,728
Net position - end of ye $ 502,493,72 $ 21,89254 $ 524,386,27
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - CUSTODIAL FUNDS

June 30, 202
Custodial Funds
Treasurer Dek
ASSETS Office of Treasurer Service Totals
Cash and cash equivalents $ 153,874 $ - $ 153,874
Equity in pooled cash 16,706,497 139,437 16,845,934
Investments 10,631,690 179,633 10,811,323
Property tax receivable 6,292,628 106,006 6,398,634
Accrued Interest Receivable - 8 8
Due from other governments 4,542,013 - 4,542,013
Total asset: $ 38,326,70 $ 425,08 $ 38,751,78
LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing units $ 38,326,702 425,084 $ 38,751,786
Total liabilities $ 38,326,70 $ 425,08: $ 38,751,78
NET POSITION
Fiduciary net positiol $ - $ - $ -

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POS ITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - CUSTODIAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 202
Custodial Funds

Treasurer Dek

ADDITIONS Office of Treasurer Service Totals
Contributions $ 562,457,703 $ 2,310,478 $ 564,768,181
Total additions 562,457,70 2,310,47: 564,768,18
DEDUCTIONS
Payments to other governments 562,457,703 2,310,478 564,768,181
Total deductions 562,457,70 2,310,47: 564,768,18

Net increase in fiduciary net position -
Net position - beginning of the year -

Net position - end of the ye $ - 3 - $

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Y ear Ended June 30, 2021

Passed
Assistance Pass-Through Sub Awarding Through Total
Federa Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing Entity Identifying Agency to Sub- Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number recipients  Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through the Wyoming Office of State Lands and Investments
State Forestry FY19(SFA) 10.664 None Listed - 2,188
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - 2,188
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through the Wyoming Business Council
Community Development Block Grants-Meals on Wheels Kitchen 14.228 #B-17-56-0001 Meals On Wheels 65,904 65,904
Community Development Block Grants-WYFHOP 17 14.228 #B-17-56-0001 WYFHOP 10,000 10,000
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 75,904 75,904
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through the Division of Victim Services
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 2021 16.575 2019-V2-GX-0002 - 52,399
Direct
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants COPS 17 16.710 N/A - 52,084
DOJ Veterans Treatment Court 16.585 N/A - 7,852
Adam Walsh SMART 16.750 N/A - 2,118
Equitable Sharing DOJ-Drug Funds 16.922 N/A - 9,130
OCDETF 16.001 N/A - 3,474
JAG Cluster
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program-18 16.738 N/A City of Cheyenne - 9,249
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program-19 16.738 N/A City of Cheyenne 13,147 13,522
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.034 N/A
COVID-19 - Emergency Coronavirus 16.034 N/A - 19,413
Subtotal JAG Cluster 13,147 42,184
Total Direct 13,147 116,842
Total U.S. Department of Justice 13,147 169,241
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Transportation
Highway Safety Cluster
DUI/HVE 2020 20.616 None Listed - 4,031
HVE 2021 20.600 HS40221 - 1,796
Subtotal Highway Safety Cluster - 5,827
Total U.S. Department of Transportation - 5,827
U.S. Department of Treasurer
DIRECT from Department of Treasurer
ARPA 21.027 N/A - 1,210
Total Direct - 1,210
Passed through the Wyoming Governors Office
COVID-19 - Governors Charitable Relief 21.019 None Listed - 1,919,495
COVID-19 - County UVC Robot 21.019 CRF-358 - 35,806
COVID-19 - County Wide #1 21.019 CRF-088 - 2,425,837
COVID-19 - County Wide #2 21.019 CRF-183 - 34,723
COVID-19 - UVC Robot Sheriff 21.019 CRF-097 - 36,886
COVID-19 - COMEA Shelter Meals 21.019 CRF-359 - 7,380
COVID-19 - CARES 21.019 None Listed 114,699
COVID-19 - COVID State Tracing 21.019 None Listed 675,120
COVID-19 - SLIB 21.019 CRF-91 153,915
COVID-19 - COVID Immunization 21.019 None Listed 348,821
Passed through the Wyoming Supreme Court
Supreme Court 21.019 None Listed - 7,551
Total Pass Through - 5,760,233
Total U.S. Department of Treasurer - 5,761,443
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Passed
Assistance Pass-Through Sub Awarding Through Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Listing Entity Identifying Agency to Sub- Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number recipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Health
93.354 CMS#11775/AG#11775 &
COVID-19 - Public Health Emergency Preparedness CMS#11774/AGH#166784 - 73,286
COVID-19 - Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for infectious Diseases 93.323 None Listed 172,034
Administration 93.069 None Listed 9,600
17 & 18 Bioterrorism Readiness 93.069 None Listed 202,508
Total Pass Through Wyoming Department of Health - 457,428
Passed through Wyoming Reproductive Health Council
Family Planning - Services - Title X 93.217 CLCHD/WHC TX 2015 - 111,744
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Health
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 DMM-2014-027 - 128,360
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Family Services
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families-TANF20 93.558 None Listed 21,480
Big Brothers Big Sisters 1,788
Boys & Girls Club 2,544
CLIMB Wyoming 12,729
WYFHOP 4,419
21,480
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families-TANF21 93.558 None Listed 99,581
Big Brothers Big Sisters 6,932
Boys & Girls Club 42,000
CLIMB Wyoming 45,649
WYFHOP 5,000
99,581
Subtotal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster 249,421
Total Pass Through Family Services 121,061 361,165
Passed Through the Wyoming Department Of Health-Prevention Grant
Substance Abuse & Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional & National Significance 93.243 None Listed CRMC 68,819 68,819
Block Grants for Prevention & Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 None Listed CRMC 80,388 80,388
Substance Abuse Prevention Program 93.387 None Listed CRMC 43,357 43,357
Total Pass Through Wyoming Department of Health 192,564 192,564
Total U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services 313,625 1,011,157
Wyoming Department of Secretary of State-Election Security
COVID-19 - Elections/Cybersecurity grant N/A None Listed - 8,142
Total Secretary of State - 8,142
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through the Wyoming Office of Homeland Security
COVID-19 - Emergency Management Performance Grant S-EMPG-S 97.042 20-EMPG-LAR-GCF20 - 60,162
Emergency Management Performance Grants-EMPG 20 97.042 20-EMPG-LAR-GCF20 - 132,902
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 4535-DR-WY-PISWY500 - 29,435
Homeland Security Grant Program-Coroner Decomp Cooler 97.067 20-SHSP-LCC-HRP20 - 7,429
Homeland Security Grant Program-EMA Communications/CodeRED 97.067 20-SHSP-LAR-HRP20 - 12,500
COVID-19 - Homeland Security FEMA Public Assistance 97.306 None Listed - 5,561
Homeland Security Child's Draw FEMA Planning 97.047 None Listed - 80,813
Total Pass Through Wyoming Office Homeland Security - 328,802
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security - 328,802
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 402,676 7,362,704
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

NOTESTO THE SCHEDUL E OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Notel. Basisof Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedul€") includes the federal award
activity of Laramie County under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federa
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
Laramie County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash
flows of Laramie County.

Note2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, for all awards
with the exception of assistance listing 21.019, which follows criteria determined by the Department of Treasury
for alowability of costs. Under these principles, certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as
to reimbursement.

92



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
~ A CLAconnect.com

»

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming
Cheyenne, Wyoming

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Laramie County, Wyoming, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Laramie County,
Wyoming'’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2022. Our
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Cheyenne
Regional Medical Center (the Hospital), which includes the Cheyenne Regional Medical Center
Foundation, which is combined with the Hospital, the Cheyenne Regional Medical Center Pension Plan,
and the Laramie County Library Foundation, Inc., as described in our report on the Laramie County,
Wyoming'’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditor’s testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately
by those auditors. The financial statements of the Laramie County Library Foundation, Inc. were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and, accordingly, this report does not
include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance
associated with this entity.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Laramie County,
Wyoming's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Laramie
County, Wyoming’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Laramie County, Wyoming’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

A member of

Nexia

International
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Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Laramie County, Wyoming's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001.

Laramie County, Wyoming’s Response to Findings

Laramie County, Wyoming's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Laramie County, Wyoming's response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WM"”% s

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Broomfield, Colorado
March 21, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR THE MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming
Cheyenne, Wyoming

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited Laramie County, Wyoming’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on Laramie
County, Wyoming’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2021. Laramie County,
Wyoming’'s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Laramie County, Wyoming’s basic financial statements include the operations of the Cheyenne
Regional Medical Center, a discretely presented component unit which expended $14,215,512 in
federal awards which is not included in the County’s schedule of expenditures of federal awards during
the year ended June 30, 2021. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of the
Cheyenne Regional Medical Center because those statements were audited by other auditors in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Laramie County, Wyoming’s major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on the major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Laramie County, Wyoming’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Laramie County,
Wyoming’s compliance.

A member of
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Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Laramie County, Wyoming complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major
federal program for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001. Our opinion on the major federal program
is not modified with respect to these matters.

Laramie County, Wyoming's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Laramie County, Wyoming’s response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Laramie County, Wyoming is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Laramie County, Wyoming’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Laramie County, Wyoming'’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we did identify a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.
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Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Laramie County, Wyoming

Laramie County, Wyoming’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our
audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Laramie County,
Wyoming'’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

W””‘”"% s

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Broomfield, Colorado
March 21, 2022
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? yes
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes
3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes
Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major federal programs:
¢ Material weakness(es) identified? yes
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes no
Identification of Major Federal Program
Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
21.019 COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Program

2021 — 001 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) Reporting

Award Period: July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency

Criteria or specific requirement: The County should ensure that federal expenditures reported on the
SEFA are accurate and properly reported.

Condition: During review of the County's SEFA, it was found that the amount reported on the SEFA
was overstated by $544,248. The County is required to report federal expenditures on its SEFA for
discretely presented component units, unless the component unit undergoes a separate external single
audit. The County reported its discretely presented component unit, The City of Cheyenne-Laramie
County Health Board (Health Department)’s federal expenditures under the incorrect program name and
assistance listing number and overstated federal expenditures. These amounts have since been
corrected after being discussed with the County and the Health Department.

Questioned costs: None

Cause: |Inadequate review of the amounts reported for all programs during the final SEFA
preparation process and lack of ongoing communication between the County and the Health Department
could have contributed to this finding.

Effect: The major program determination and/or current year major program testing could have been
significantly impacted due to the misstatement of the County’s total federal expenditures.

Repeat Finding: This is a new finding.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County implement a more detailed review process to ensure
that the amounts reported on the SEFA agree to the detailed supporting reconciliations for all programs.
We recommend that the County have ongoing communication with the Health Department during the year
to gain a better understanding as to the sources and dollar amount of federal expenditures that will be
reported on the County's SEFA.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: Management is in agreement with the
audit finding. Management attributes the identified cause and lack of ongoing communication between the
County and the Health Department to be the result of the significant impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on
the Health Department’s operations during the period under audit. Please see Laramie County’s corrective
action plan in response to this finding on page 101.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Laramie County, Wyoming respectfully submits the following summary schedule of prior audit findings for the
year ended June 30, 2020.

Audit period: July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

The findings from the prior audit’'s schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The findings
are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the prior year.

FINDINGS—FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

There were no financial statement findings in the prior year.

FINDINGS— FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS

There were no federal award program audit findings in the prior year.
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LARAMIE COUNTY, WYOMING
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

In accordance with 2 CFR §200.511, Audit Findings Follow-up, Laramie County, Wyoming (the County)
respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Audit period: July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

The findings from the schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The finding is numbered
consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule.

FINDINGS—FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No findings noted for the financial statement audit.

FINDINGS—FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2021-001

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) Reporting

Recommendation: We recommend that the County implement a more detailed review process
to ensure that the amounts reported on the SEFA agree to the detailed supporting
reconciliations for all programs. We recommend that the County have ongoing communication
with the Health Department during the year to gain a better understanding as to the sources and
dollar amount of federal expenditures that will be reported on the County’s SEFA.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: Laramie County has already implemented processes to
insure improved communication and regular reconciliation and review of Federal expenditures
as it relates the County’s SEFA.

Name(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Stanley Walker, Laramie
County Finance Director and Laura Malone, Health Department Fiscal Director

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: Already implemented by the County.

If the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) has questions regarding this plan, please call Stanley Walker
at (307) 633-4395.
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